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Chairman’s Message
Dear Shareholders,

| am delighted to inform you that your Company is
celebrating 25 years of its incorporation. The Company
was incorporated in 1986 and production started in
1988, We can all look back now with pride as we have
come through various transitional curves, many of them
very challenging, to reach a distinguished and reputed
position in the Automotive Industry. It is at this point
that | would like to thank sach and every one of the
stakeholders for having faith in the Management of the
Company and for being there through the challenging
Joumey of 25 years. Cbviously, your Company is not
going to rest on its laurels but will continually strive to
deliver excellence in each sphere of the Business
Process.

The World Economy

Since 2008 a lot of transformational changes have taken
place in the Global Economy, however there is still a
long way to go. The TRIAD markets are still going
through the restructuring process and have not found

a sustainable answer to many ills troubling their
economies, In today's world which is globally connected
through trade and commerce, no market can remain
unimpacted by the volatility in the major economies of
the world. Although the developing countries, including
the BRIC countries fared better than the rest, yel given
the current situation, the entire global economy faces
numerous challenges thrown up by inflationary
pressures on commadities and food products,

India’s growth dynamics were in contrast to the overall
global scenario and India remained as one of the fastesl
growing economies registering growth of 8.5% during
2010-11. However, as we go into print, we hear of
various downward revisions being made to India's
growth forecast for 2011-12. The RBIl has revised the
growth forecast down to 8% for 2011-12 but other
indications from various independent agencies speak
of a growth estimate below 8% also.
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The Indian Auto Industry

The Indian two-wheeler industry has shown strong
volume growth over the last two years, having grown
by 25% in 2009-10 by manufacturing 10.52 million units
and 27% in 2010-11 to reach 13.37 million units. Further,
with this growth vehicle production is estimated to
increase three fold from 2009 to 2020. The rise in
demand Is led by various underlying factors including
India’s rising per capita income, increasing rural
demand, growing urbanization, swelling replacement
demand etc. However it is expected that rising interest
rates, raw material & fuel prices will lower sales growth
and the forecast for the automobile sector in the current
financial year is 11 to 13% compared to the eadier
projection of 12-15%. The lower growth forecasts are
primarily for passenger vehicles and undoubtedly, any
further increase in interest rates will adversely affect
growth numbers for other segments also. Your Company
is however hoping that the rural market, which is also
a large and vibrant market, will sustain a reasonable
growth for two wheelers.
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Future outlook

Inflationary pressures, which are triggered by supply
side factors, are now developing into a wider issue
together with other factors like higher finance and input
costs. Monsoon during this year is predicted to be below
normal. A new industrial palicy is on the cards and will
hopefully address the ground level realities faced by
manufacturing set ups In the industrial sector, so that
the growth in the curment year { 2011-12) atleast mafches
the prior year.

Uncerainty about the extent and pace of global recovery
persists. Private spending in advanced economies
continues to be constrained making it likely that
economic stimull in these economies will continue for
a further penod. Emerging Market Economies will also
have almost the same position as in the previous year
i.e growth in a restricted manner in selected industries.

On the cost front, the availability of key raw materials
such as steel and energy at reasonable prices, inflation,
lower demand etc will remain as a cause of concern.

The Indian automobile market and our outlook

The Indian automobile market has made its mark in
the world by giving quality products at competitive
prices. The Automebile and Auto Component sectors
go hand in hand., With the robust growth in the
automobile sector, the auto component sector has also
flourished. There has been consistent growth in the
auto component market in recent years and it is
estimated that the auto component market is worth US
% 30 billion in India.

Significant investments are being made by Indian OEMs
and auto component manufacturers in order to increase
their capacities and fill the gap between the supply and
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demand. This has opened a new opportunity for your
Company also to offer contemporary products to its
export customers by upgrading its technology. As your
Company now exports around 22% of its tolal sales,
we have to focus on technological changes to keep
abreast of various developments and be responsive to
the market and specific customer requirements.
Accordingly, we have recently acquired newer gear
finishing technologies and we are further investing in
world class and best-in class inspectionf/testing
infrastructure for high quality products that can help in
building up confidence of our esteemed customers in
India and across the globe. This is because your
Company believes that the long term outlook for the
Auto Sector is still quite pesitive, especially in India.

Company Strategy

Your Company is now focusing on future technologies
and sustainable manufacturing. In this connection, it is
my pleasure to inform you that HGL has set up another
state of the arl plant, near the mother plant in Bhiwadi,
Rajasthan which will soon be functional at its full
capacity. This facility is an 'ECOFAC Plant’, and is meant
to be a sustainable green manufacturing plant.

The financial year 2010-2011 was an encouraging year
in all aspects for the Company. The turnover of the
company surpassed the Rs. 400 crore mark & touched
Rs. 424 .93 crores. The profit before tax was Rs.52.67
crores and the profit after tax stood at Rs. 35.04 crores.
The Company has shared the gains among the
sharehelders of the Company by giving 1:1 Bonus
Shares and 15% interim dividend, Your Board of
Directors have further reviewed the cash position of
the Company and have recommended a final dividend
of 25% for your approval,

You must be aware that HGL Is already one of the
largest independent transmission manufacturing
companies in the country and we are constantly
updating and achieving best standards of technology
to keep pace with the global requirements and make
Hi-Tech a global brand. | would like to place on record
my sincere gratitude to the entire Hi-Tech family for
their dedicated and relentless hard work in the year
that has gone by to enable the Company to achieve
the success that it has.

Before | conclude, | would like to thank all our business
partners for their continued support and belief in Hi-
Tech's endeavors, and for being an active part of Hi-
Tech's growth story. My sincers gratitude to my Board
colleagues for their wise guidance from time to time. |
wish that this journey will continue to be equally exciting
and rewarding as we move ahead.

Deep Kapuria
Chairman
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Managing Director's Message
Dear Shareholders,

It gives me immense pleasure to reach you through
this 25" Annual Report. It has been a long time since
| interacted with you and a lot of changes have taken
place in the world around us since then. Therfore, it
would perhaps be appropriate to briefly review the
macro economic scenario first before looking at the
Company's performance and outlook.

Macre Economic Scenario

The world economy experienced very tough times since
2008 and the uncertainty persists even today. India &
China have however stood out and have recovered
faster than many other economies in the world. In the
process they have even helped other economies to
emerge from the global slow down.

India is now acting as a global manufacturing hub for
manufacture of commercial vehicles, small & mid size
cars and two wheselers, Rapid increase in sales of the
small cars segment in India has prompted a number of
glabal automobile companies to enhance Lheir
capacities for domestic as well as export markets,
Additionally, there has been a steep increase in the
sales of two wheelers and thus the Indian auto
components industry is poised to grow in the current
financial year also, though the rate of growth could be
lower than prior years.

During the year under review the automobile industry
grew at 27.45% and recorded total production of 17.92
million units. The two wheeler segment also grew at
the same proportion and posted a total production of
13.37 million units. The Automobile sector is attaining
new heights by manufacturing and selling more and
more passenger cars and fwo wheelers. The sales have
reportedly doubled in rural markets, where the leading
two wheeler manufactures have been able to penetrate
and reach out to hitherto untouched customers.

It Is however expected that there will be greater
competition in the two wheeler segment in the current
year. Similarly, new models will be launched by the
Car Manufacturers in the coming year to fight greater
competition. At the same time there are also good
opportunities for exports for the OEMs and Tier 1
manufacturers due to the combined benefits of
comparatively lower material / labour cost and the
advantages of competitive technology.

innovation technoloay

Company's performance and outlook
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The financial year 2010-2011 was a milestone in the
history of the Company and ended on a encouraging
note, The turnover of the company crossed the
Rs, 400 crore mark and touched a net turmover of
Rs. 424.93 crores (Previous year Rs. 322.69 crores),
recarding an increase of 31.68%. The Net Profit (After
tax) of the Company has increased from Rs. Rs.17.85
crores to Rs. 35.04 crores, recording an increase of
96.30 % as compared to the previous year.
Hi-Tech Gears Net Profit
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The Company with its deep understanding of the markel
is now well placed to exploit growth opportunities
resulting in an increase in the demand for its products.
The Company posted an increase in the sales of all its
business verlicals during the year under review be it
Two Wheeler components, or the T&EC & PTU
business verlicals.

In the recent past, we have won new businesses in UK
& Brazil and our exports to the USA have also
increased. As a result, the company posted strong
export sales of Rs. 90.03 crores with an increase of
B84% as compared to export sales of Rs. 48.89 crores
in the previous year. As a result of all of the above,
your company's dependence on the two wheeler
segment has decreased as compared to the prior years,
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We at HGL have understood the philosophy of sharing
the gains with our stakeholders, Accordingly bonus
shares were issued to the existing shareholders of the
Company in the proportion of 1:1 by capitalising Rs.9.38
crores from the General Reserves during the year 2010-
11 and now the total paid up share capital of the
Company stands at Rs. 18.77 crores. Additionally the
company also paid interim dividend of 15% on the
increased share capital during the year under review
and paid Rs, 2.82 crores. Encouraged with the
performance of the Company | am pleased to report
that the Directors have further recommended a final
dividend of 25% l.e. Rs, 2.50 per equity share subject
to the your approval at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting resulting in a payoul of Rs. 4.69 crores.

The Company continued to engage the services of Emst
& Young ('E&Y) to Improve and establish suitable
internal control systems with the purpose of
safeguarding the Company's assets, promoting
operational efficiency and ensuring compliance with
various legal and regulatory provisions. The intermal
audits are conducted regularly during the year to check
various business processes and adherence to laid
down policies and procedures. Reports of the Internal
Audits are regularly reviewed at the Audit Committee
Meetings.

On the business front, the company is negotiating with
several new customers. Some new products are also
under development in tune with the Company's
expertise in gear manufacturing and these are expected
to add 1o the company’s revenues in the years fo
come. Further, the Company continues to focus on
cost reduction efforts and make improvements in
operational efficiencies as well as value engineering
activities to Improve margins,

The future of the Company is full of opportunities and
looks exciting and promising despite the headwinds
being faced by almost all industries today. | thank and
solicit continuous support from all the stakeholders
including customers, vendors and our bankers. | also

wish to place on record my sincere thanks to my
colleagues at all levels and the Board members for
their valuable guidance.

Pranav Kapuria
Managing Director
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1986 Incorporated as a Public Limited Company

1988 Production commencement: single source supplier to Hero Hond
1989 Product Iindigenisation

Technical Tie-up with Kyush Musashi, a subsidiary of

Honda Mators, Japan
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Backward Integration into Precision Forgings
Selected as single source supplier to Honda Power,
Tata Cummins Ltd.

Technology Agreement with GETRAG, LS

Certi ed as |S0 9002

BPR launched

Selected as a global source to Cummins, US

Certi ed as Q59000

TRATAE B iy

Separate Division to handle high{md design and CAD services
established, under the name of Hi-Tech eSoft.

2002 Launched initiative of Lean Manufacturing

2003 Certi ed for Integrated Quality Management Systems

2003 Certi ed for TS 16949

2002 Enwvironment Certi cation 150 4001 :

2003 Occupational Health & Safety Certi cation OHSAS 18001 ;1999

2004 Establishment of Hi-Tech Robatic System

2004 Prototyping/ productionising Precision Components for Robert
Bosch, GM, Vialva and Daimler Chrysier

BOSCH | carerean |

2005 State-of-the-art Manufacturing Facility set up at Manesar S T i et

2007 Hi-Tech aSoft (division of HGL) certj ed for 150 9001 : 2000
o Wil ArvinMeritor.

2008 ACMA Export Award 2006-07
2008 Setup of Pune Office
2009 Excellence Award for Manufacturing and Expaort

2010

TPM Excellence Awards Categery A & Shingo Silver Medallion

2011 New State of Art "ECOFAC” Plant satup in Bhiwadi
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors present the 25" Annual Report of your
Company with great pleasure, together with the audited
statement of accounts for the financial yvear ended 31
March, 2011.

Financial Results

The highlights of the financial performance of the
Company are as under;-

(Rs. in lacs)

Particulars 2010-2011  2009-2010
Sales (net of excise duty) 4249315 3226086
Other Income 24323 85.18
Total Income 4273638  32356.05
Profits before Depreciation, Interest and

Taxes (PBOIT) 7647.39 4846.94
Depreciation 1618.71 1260.72
Profits before Interest and Taxes ( PBIT)  6028.68 3586.22
Financial Charges 761.52 Ba7.07
Cash Profit (PBOT) 6885.86 3950.86
Profits before Taxes (PET) 5267.16 2609.14
Provision for Taxes 1762.97 914.09
Profit after tax (PAT) 3504.19 1785.05
Balance of profit brought forward 3276.53 2238.07
Balance available for appropriation 6780.00 4020.57
Dividend 750.72 42228
Tax on dividend 12287 71.78
Transfer to General Reserve 400.00 200.00
Balance Surplus in P & L Account 5456.41 3276.53
Paid-up Equity Share Capital 1876.80 938,40
Eamings Per Share (EPS) 18.67 19.00
Operations

The year gone by proved to be a turnaround year for
the performance of your company and very encouraging
for exparts, The revenues of the Company (net of excise
duty) increased to Rs. 42736.38 lacs in 2010-11 as
compared to Rs.32356.05 lacs in 2008-10, thus
registering an impressive increase of 32.08%. The Net
Profit (after tax) of the Company has increased from
Rs. 178504 lacs to Rs. 3504.19 lacs, recording an
increase of 96.31 % as compared to the previous year.

Passlon mnovation technolo ay

During the year your company allotted bonus shares to
the existing shareholders of the Company in the
proportion of 1:1 by capitalising Rs.938.40 lacs from
the General Reserves, thus raising the paid up share
capital of your company to Rs.1876.80 lacs. The
eamings per share (EPS) was Rs.18.67 per equity share
on the increased share capital for the year under review.
In the prior year { 2009-10 ) it was Rs.19,00 per share
on the lower share capital of Rs. 938.40 Lacs.

The year under review saw an increase in demand for
the company's products in both the domestic and
exports markets.

Exports

During the year under review your Company recorded
a total export turnover of Rs. 80.03 crores as compared
to export sales of Rs. 48.89 crores in the previous
year, thus registering an increase of B4% . The higher
exports were made possible because your company
penetrated the European and Latin American markets
also in addition to US market.

Dividend

During the year, an interim dividend of 15% i.e. Rs.
1.50 per equity share on the increased share capital
ameounting to Rs. 281.52 lacs was declared and paid.
The Directors have now recommend fo the shareholders
a final dividend of 25% i.e. Rs. 2.50 per equity share
subject to the approval of the shareholders at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting resulting in a payout
of Rs. 469.20 lacs.

If the dividend on the shares as, recommended by the
Board of Directors, is approved by the shareholders in
their 28" Annual General Meeting, payment of such
dividend will be made to those members whose names
appear in the Register of Members as on Seplember
27. 2011, In respect of the shares held in electronic
form, the dividend will be payable to the beneficial
owners of the shares as on the closing hours of
business on September 15, 2011, as per the details
fumished by the depositories for this purpose.

Credit Rating

The independent credit rating agency, 'Fitch’ has
upgraded HGL's rating to ‘A {ind})’, which reflects HGL's
consistent revenue growth and an improvement in its
profitability in the last four years supported by a decline
in HGL's working capital cycle. Your company’s net
cash conversion cycle therefore improved from 19 days
to 3 days.

Electronic Clearing Services (ECS)

As per the circular issued by Securities & Exchange
Board of India (SEBI}, companies should mandatorily
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use the facility of Electronic Clearing Services (ECS),
for distribution of dividends to its members. This facility
provides to the members an opporiunity o receive
dividend amount directly in their bank accounts. For
availing this facility, members holding shares in physical
form may send their duly filled ECS mandate form to
the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
(RTA). Members holding shares in dematerialized form
may kindly note that their bank account details as
furnished to their depositories will be taken for the
purpose of ECS and the Company. Shareholders who
wish to change their bank account details are therefore
requested to advise their depositories participants about
such changes.

Those shareholders who have not yet opted for the
ECS faclity are once again requested to avall the
benefits of ECS.

Postal Ballot

During the financlal year 2010-11, no Special Resolution
was required to be passed through postal baliot. At the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting, there Is no item
for approval through Postal Baliot,

Code for Prevention of Insider Trading Practices

In compliance with the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 1992, your Company has adopted
a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading
Practices for its Directors and designated employees.
The code lays down guidelines, which include
procedures to be followed, and disclosures to be made
while dealing in the shares of the Company.

Trading Window

In accordance with the Code of Conduct for prevention
of insider trading, the Company closes iis trading
window for designated employees and directors from
time to time. As per the policy, the trading window
closes for a period of 7 (seven) days, prior to the date
of the Board Meeling and opens 24 hours after the
conclusion of Board Meeting in which the respective
quarterly/half yearly/ yearly financial results are
approved. The trading window is also closed during
and after occurrence of price sensitive events as per
the Code of Conduct for prevention of insider trading.

Code of Conduct

Your Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its
Board Members and Senior Management pearsonnel,
The code of conduct has also been posted on the
official website of the Company. A copy of the code of
conduct has been circulated to all the directors and
Sanior Management.

The Declaration by the Managing Director of the
Company regarding compliance with the Code of
Conduct for Board Members and Senlor Management
is annexed with the Corporate Governance report.

Secretarial Audit

Mis Grover Ahuja & Associates, practicing Company
Secretary carried out the Secretarial Audit on quarterly
basis to reconcile the total issued and listed share
capital with National Securities Depository Limited
{N3DL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited
{CDSL). The Board of Directors confirms that the total
issued and paid up capital as on 31" March, 2011 is
reconciled with the total number of shares in physical
form and the total number of dematerialized shares
held with NSDL and CDSL. The Secretarial audit report
is being submitted every quarter to the Stock
Exchanges and is also placed before the Board
Meeting.

Subsidiary Company

The Company had no subsidiary during the financial
year 2010-11,

Listing of Shares

With a view to provide easy liquidity in the shares of
the Company, the equity shares of your Company are
presently listed on the premier stock exchanges viz.,
the National Stock Exchange (NSE) and the Bombay
Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) Mumbai. Pursuant to
Clause 38 of the Listing Agreement, the annual listing
fees for the year 2011-2012 has been paid within the
prescribed time period.

Dematerialization of the equity shares

98.58% of the total equity shares of the Company are
held in dematerialized form with the padicipants of
Mational Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and
Central Depository Securitles (India) Limited as on the
date of this report.

Keeping in view the benefits of dematerialization, your
directors urge the shareholders holding shares in
physical form to get their shares dematerialized.

Directors

Recently, the Board of Directors of your company has
been reconstituted with the induction of a new Additional
Director, Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain w.e.f August 10,
2011, The appointment of Mr. Jain is upto the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and the Board of
Directors commends to the shareholders, his
appointment as a Director of the Company.
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Mr, Anil Kumar Khanna and Mr. Pranav Kapuria,
Directors of the Company, retire by rotation at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible offer
themselves for re-appointment. Mr. Deep Kapuria, Mr.
Sandeep Dinodia, Mr. Anil Kumar Khanna, Mr. P C
Mathews and Mr. Anuj Kapura are the other continuing
Directors

A brief profile of the directors proposed to be appointed
ar re-appointed and the information pursuant to Clause
49 V1 (A} of the Listing Agreement is being annexed to
the Motice convening the 25" Annual General Meeting.

Auditors

Mis Gupla Vigg & Company, Charlered Accountants,
Statutory Auditors of the Company retire at the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the
Company and being eligible, have offered themselves
for re-appointment. The Company has received an
eligibility certificate from the auditors under Section
224 (1B) of the Companies Act, 1856. The Board of
Directors recommends their re-appointment.

The report by the Statutory Auditors is self explanatory,
Please refer to the MNotes to Accounts wherever

necessary.
Directors Responsibility Statement

In compliance of Section 217(2AA) of the Companies
Act, 1956, as amended by the Companies
(Amendment) Act, 2000, the Board of Directors of your
Company confirms:

a. That the applicable accounting standards have
been followed in the preparation of final accounts
for the year ended March 31, 2011 and that there
are no material departures.

b. That such accounting policies have been selected
and applied consistently and such judgments and
eslimates made are reasonable and prudent so as
to give a true and fair view of the stale of affairs
of the Company as at March 31, 2011 and of the
profit of the Company for the year ended on that
date,

¢. That proper and sufficient care has been taken for
the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 1956, for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities, and

10
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d. That the annual accounts for the year ended March
31, 2011 have been prepared on a going concern
basis,

Particulars of Employees

Information in accordance with the provisions of Section
217(24) of the Companies Acl, 1956, read with the
Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975 as
amended, is given in Annexure-|, to this report.

The Conservation of Energy, Technology
Absorption, Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo.

Your Company continuously strives for Safety,
Environment Management and conservation of
resources like fuel, water, gas and power. Therefore,
emphasis is being laid on employing sophisticated
techniques which result in conservation of natural
resources like energy, fuel etc,

Your company gives high priority to safety which
envisages a zero accident policy as the only acceptable
standard of performance.

Details of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption,
Research & Development activities underiaken by the
Company and fareign exchange earnings and outgo of
the Company and other information in accordance with
the provisions of Section 217(1) (e} of the Companies
Act, 1956, read with the Companies (Disclosure of
Particulars in the Report of Board of Direclors), Rules,
1988, are given in Annexure-ll, to this Reporl.

Corporate Governance

The Report on Corporate Governance |s attached
herewith in Annexure-lll, and the certificate from the
Statutory Auditors confirming compliance with the
provisions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in
Clause 49 of the listing agreement is also attached to
the repor.

Management discussion & analysis report

The Management Discussion & Analysis Report is given
separately, forming part of this report.

Trade Relations

The Board of Directors place on record their
appreciation for the co-operation and valuable support
extended by the customers, the suppliers and all other
persons directly or indirectly associated with the
Company. Your Company regards them as partners
and shares with them a commeon vision of growth in
the future.
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Public Deposits

During the year under review your Company neither
invited nor aceepled any deposit within the meaning of
Section 58-A of the Companies Act, 1956, and rules
made there under.

Personnel

The Board of Directors place on record their
appreciation of the untiring efforts of the employees of
the organisation at every level. The effords to create a
family like atmosphere continued through out the year,
Like the many years gone-by, this yvear also witnessed
increased cohesion among all levels of employees,
which is evident from the performance of the Company.
Training and Development of employees provided
further impetus and have contributed towards the all
round improved performance of your company.

Awards and Other Recognitions

Your directors have pleasure and feel privileged in
reporting the award received by the Company during
2010-2011.The Details are provided in the Management
Discussion & Analysis Report.

Acknowledgement

Your directors place on record their grateful appreciation
for the assistance, cooperation and valuable support
provided to the Company by Customers, Vendors,
Banks & Financial Institutions and hope to continue to
receive the same in future. Your Directors also record
their appreciation for the commitment and dedication
of the the employees of the Company.

The Board of Directors also place on record their
gratitude to the shareholders of the Company for their
continued support to and confidence in the management
of the Company.

By Order of the Board
For Hi-Tech Gears Limited

Place: New Delhi
Dated: August 10, 2011

Deep Kapuria
Chairman
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FORMING PART OF THE DIRECTOR'S REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2011.

The Macro Economic Environment

The Indian Economy emerged with remarkable rapidity
from the slowdown caused by the global financial crisis
of 2008-09. The economy experienced a more balanced
and posilive growth, aided by a solid recovery in
Agricullure and continued good performance of Industry
and Services. As per advance eslimales of the
Economic Survey of 2010-11, the growth was strong in
2010-11 with GDP growth at factor cost being 8.5%.
The Indian economy is the second highest growing
economy and the robust growth of 2010-11 can be
ascribed to the following:-

* Increase in Exports (In terms of USD) by 34.4%
while imports have grown by 14.1% only

+ Six core industries comprising of crude oil,
pelroleum refinery products, coal, cement,
electricily and steel grew by 5.8% as compared
to 5.5% during 2008-10.

= Overall growth in the Index of Industrial
Production (IIP) recarded as 8.2% as compared
to 5.3% In previous year,

*  Manufacturing growth was 8.8% and its share
in GDP was 15.9%.

= 242 million tons of the food grains produced
showing our self sufficiency in Agriculture.

We are hopeful that the economy will try {o match the
same growth in the next fiscal also. However rising
fuel, metal & mineral prices and general inflation are
putting pressure on the domestic economy. Food
inflation in particular has remained a cause of concern
for the economy. There is a need 1o be alert and
prepared lo take proactive sleps as the emerging
scenario warrants, with the objective of bringing down
inflation.

The world economy began to stabilse in the first half of
the financial year 2010-11 after the aflermath of the
global crisis in the previous years. Signs of recovery
were clearly visible and were largely driven by the robust
growth in the Emerging Market Economies. Growth in
advanced couniries was marginal and they continued
lo face uncertainty with large fiscal deficits, high public
debl and high unemployment levels. However, the
situation was better compared to the severe crunch
faced in the prior year.

In the second half of 2010-11 the growth path was
slow. Inflation and high commodity prices have ne-
emerged as a major concern equally in Emerging
Markel Economies as well as in developed countries.
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World Trade

The trade growth recovered faster than the real GDP
growth of the respective countries during the year 2010-
11. This has been made possible, in part by the fiscal
stimuli provided by the respeclive governmenls and
the low base of the prior year. The extent of growth
differs subslantially across countries and world trade
remains below its pre-crisis stage. In India, trade growth
was among the best and even reached the pre crisis
levels.

Industry & Segment dynamics
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Domestic Sales Trends of the auto sector in 2010-11.

The Indian auto components industry has witnessed
consistent growth over the last two fiscals. The factors

responsible are demand from the end user industry
(i.e. OEMSs), improved consumer sentiment, return of
adequate liguidity in the financial system and the
continuing partial fiscal stimulus provided by the
Governmenl.

Indusiry expects the trend of low automobile sales
volume growth, and in turn the auto ancillary business
growth is also to slow down in the current financial
year as compared lo the prior year especially for
passenger cars and possibly for commercial vehicles,
in view of the headwinds being faced by almost all
industries today.

The long term prospects are however still bright and
the demand will grow due to various underlying factors
including India's rising per capila income , increasing
rural demand, growing urbanization, swelling
replacement demand etc,

Export Outlook

The year gone by proved to be encouraging for exports.
The exporls increased in line with the growth of the
Indian economy. Even though exporters suffered due
to the volatility in the exchange rate and the pressure
of rising raw material cost, but the overall export
remained satisfactory. The engineering exports grew at
B84% in 2010-11, from US § 32.7 billion in the prior year

to US $ 60.1 billion, which accounts for 25% of India's
total exports.
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Export Sales Trends of aulomobile sector

In the Auto seclor, the overall export of automaobiles in
all categories in financial year 2010-11 is 2.34 million
units as compare o 1.81 million units in the previous
year, showing an increase of 29.28 percenl. The major
chunk in total exports remains with the two wheeler
segment with 1.54 million unils compare to 1.14 million
units in the previous year. Due to the improved quality
of the final product and competitive edge on the pricing
issue the commercial vehicles' export growth rate is
69.51 percent and the total 0.27 million units. However,
in passenger vehicle category the growth was very
negligible.

For HGL, the financial year 2010-11 proved lo be a
year of significant improvement in performance. Further,
HGL has penelrated the European and Latin American
markets and registered total exporl sales of Rs. 90.03
crores with an increase of 84% as compared to export
sales of Rs. 48.89 crores in the previous year. This
has become possible as a result of Hi-Tech's constant
endeavor to become a true ‘global foolprint’ company.

Financial Analysis

The Company posted higher sales in the financial year
2010-11 and for the first time in its history the
Company's turnover crossed the Rs. 400 crores mark
The net revenues of the Company increased to Rs.
424.93 crores as compared to 322.69 crores in 2009-
10, registering an significant increase of 31.68%. This
was due lo rise in the sales of all the business verticals
of the Company and its exports. The Profit after Tax
(PAT) for the year 2010-11 was at Rs. 35.04 crores as
compared to Rs. 17.85 crores in the previous year
thereby registering a very impressive increase of
96.30%.

During the year the company allotted bonus shares to
the existing shareholders of the Company in the
proportion of 1:1 by capitalising Rs. 9.38 crores from
the General Reserves. The company also paid interim
dividend of 15% i.e. Rs. 1.50 per equity shares on the
increased share capital. Keeping in view the financial
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performance and availability of funds the Directors have
further recommended a final dividend of 25% ie, Rs,
2.50 per equily share subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting
resulting in a payout of Rs. 4.69 crores. The earnings
per share (EPS) stood at Rs. 18,67 per equity share on
the increased share capital.

Risks & Outlook

There has been growing demand for the transmission
auto components of the commercial vehicle segment,
whereas the company has its position as a major auto
component supplier to two wheeler OEMs. The
Company does not treat this as risk but rather as an
opportunity. In tune with this, the company has erected
another plant, near the mother plant in Bhiwadi,
Rajasthan and will commence the commercial
production of transmission aute components for
commercial as well as passenger vehicles.

Steel Is the primary raw material for the products of the
company, and Is a very significant part of the cost of
the final product. Rising stesl prices continue to be a
challenge and pose a threat to the margins of the
company in this competitive auto component sector,
The other major cost in production is energy cost.
Presently the company is getting power from the State
Electricity Board at Rs. 425 per unit and this cost is
quite high.
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To mitigate the risk, the Company continues to strive
to improve its operational performance and develop
new components, which are technologically superior
and have an edge over the competitors. However, any
further increase of steel prices may lead to reduction
of margins. To address the energy cost, the company
is implementing a process, whereby it is proposing to
purchase electricity through the Electricity Exchange
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by getting competitive quotes. If implemented properly,
it will save considerable amounts spent on energy.

Sales Performance and profile

The company has successiully navigated through the
troubled times. The sales to the major customers have
shown a steady rising trend in both domestic and export
segments. The two wheeler component sales grew
along with the sales of the other major business verticals
viz T&EC & PTU. During the year the Company has
been able to consolidate on its sales with the domestic
as well as foreign customers.

Internal Controls and their adequacy

The Company has a robust internal control and audit
system to provide adequate assurance regarding the
effectiveness and efficiency of its sysiems and
operations. The controls are commensurate to the
needs of the organization given its size and complexity
of operations. The standard operating procedures
ensure compliance to local regulation and statutes as
applicable to the Company. Senior members of the
leadership team confirm compliance and issue relevant
certificates which are relied upon by the Audit Committee
and the Board of Directors. The Company sirictly
ensures adherence to all internal contral policies and
procedures as well as compliance with all regulatory
guidelines,

Awards & Recognitions

The Company is committed to continue the TPM joumey
further and won several awards and ceriificates during
the year. HGL was honored with the International Level
Gold Award from QCFI ICQCC - 2010 in Hyderabad
and Chapter leval Gold Award from QCFI CCQC -
2010 in Delhi. The Company was also conferred
‘Excellent Award' from QCF| — 2010 in Bangalore.
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The Company has been awarded the 2 prize in the
Medium Business Category from Trident Quality Pioneer
Award in North West Quality Tech Awards held in
Chandigarh. The recognitions were made possible due
o the total commitment of the management and active
participation of all employees of Hi-Tech group.
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Keeping in pace with the future growth of the auto
component segment of the automobile industry HGL
has set up another state of arl plant in Bhiwadi,
Rajasthan. This facility Is unique in its sense and has
been built as an 'ECOFAC Plant', l.e. a sustainable
green manufacturing plant and is registered with the
Indian Green Building Council as a pilot project and
has all the features of safely and energy & water
conservation, waste management efc.

Human Resources

Human resources being one of the most important
factors of production, the company is initiating measures
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towards competence and overall development of people
at all levels to be future ready. In doing so, the Company
is organising indoor & outdoor programs for their
continued learning. The learning is not only for the
benefit of the Company, but it is for the overall
development as a human being.

During this year also, the Company continued fo
maintain its track record of peaceful industrial relations
ever since its inceplion. It sustains and fosters its unique
paternal culture across all operating locations. Several
health and safety initiatives are introduced as part of a
struciured program to enhance the safely and health
of its workmen and other associates. Performance
measuremant and skill up gradation programs are
widely deployed within the Company

Segment Reporting

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of
gears and transmission components. The inherent
nature of both the activitiss is governed by the same
set of risk and returns; hence these have been grouped
as a single segment. The said treatment is in
accordance with the principle enunciated in the
Accounting Standard on Segment Reporting (AS - 17).

mnovation techno

Disclaimer

This report contains certain statements that the
Company believes and may be considered as forward
looking statements. These forward looking statements
may be identified by their use of words like ' plan’,
‘hope’, ‘will', ‘expect, 'aim' or such similar words or
phrases, All such statements are subject to risks and
uncertainties which could cause actual results to vary
materially from those contemplated by the relevant
forward looking statements.

New Plant Philosoplty

| Supplior | |

5050 50

A

Y=Y

—
LOAD LEVELING

LEAN LOGISTICS OPERATING MODEL

Customer Demand Drven Operating Model with Least Thruput Time
EMcient Relurm on investment

GREEN ECOFAC PLANT

Resource- Efficient (On the principal of 3RS - Reduce, Reuse, Recycle)
Maintenance-Friendly (Economical, Social, and Ecological Sustainable)

(F || g

B [ [

TOTAL EMPLOYEES INVNOLEMENT c
Employees-Friendly Operations “5
Culture of Continuous Impsovement

e
-,
o

] E AN

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The company is conscious of its corporate social
responsibility {(C3R) and takes initiatives for
development of the community and society. We at Hi-
tech Gears Limited ('HGL') assume the responsibility
to act in a socially responsible manner. Our business
activities are not only related to legal compliances but
also to ethical values, respect for people, community
and environment.

Societal Responsibility

HGL has taken many initiatives for improving and
enriching the lives of people in our society at large.
One such initiative is the continuous improvement and
development of its adopted ITI at Hatin situated in Tehsil
Tauru, Distt. Sohna, Gurgaon. The management has
understood that education is the first move towards the
betterment of society and with this view has taken the
following measures during the year under review:

A 100 KV Silent Generator is provided
« Security lights are provided for the campus

+  Tube lights and fans are provided for the
classroom to enable the students to study
comfortably.

+  Sufficient School furniture has been provided

«  Financial aid provided for construction of bore
well and girls rest rooms.

+  Purchase of water cooler, RO System and
Water Tank for the provision of clean drinking
water,

In addition to above, the following IT initiatives were
also taken:

= One dedicated Computer cabin was provided
for Auto Cad,

+  Purchase of LCD Projector, DVD Player,
Teaching modules and reference Books.

» Launching a web site for the IT| being planned,

To deal with the in-depth requirement of social &
educational needs, HGL is influencing its employees
and customers to become socially responsible. On
August 5, 2010 a blood donation camp was organised
at Bhiwadi Plant in association with Bharat Vikas
Parishad and Rotary Club to mark the birth day of our
Chairman Mr. Deep Kapuria, in which 101 unit blood
was donaled. Senior Officers from the local
Administration and Police also attended the camp
organised by the company. The local media gave due
coverage and appreciated the efforts made by the
Company.
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Faor the soclal activities undertaken by the Company,
WNagar Vikas Nyas, the local Govemment body also
acknowledged and awarded a certificate.

Environmental Responsibility

Environmental protection and its conservation has
remained an area of growing importance for HGL. The
Management is very focused on ils responsibiliies
andhas taken the following steps towards environment
conservation ;

= A numbers of plantation drives were initiated
throughout the year. Cur concentration was not
only plantaton but also the protection of the
plants.

+  Adopiing environment friendly and safe
processes.

* Reduction of unnecessary consumplion and
wastage.

+  Encourage the process of recycling and reuss.

HGL has set up another state of art plant in Bhiwadi,
Rajasthan. This facility is unigue in its sense and is
built as an 'ECOFAC Plant’, i.e. a sustainable green
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manufaciuring plant and is registered with the Indian
Green Building Council as a pilot project and has all
the features of safety, energy & water conservation,
waste management etc. It is based on all the modern
concepts of Lean, TPM and TEI for best utilization of
all production modules and promotes total employee
invalvement.

Similarly, many steps are being taken for the overall
economic growth and development of the society at all
its locations. Education and employment opportunities
are being created among youths in fune with the
expansion plans of the Company. There are many more
initiatives planned for the coming years, as a
commitment of HGL to all aspects of Corporate Social

Responsibility.

Annexure-|

Statement of pariculars of Employees pursuant to the provision of section 217{2A) of the Companies Act, 1956,as
amended by Amendment Act, 1888, read with the Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975, as amended,
forming part of the 25th Directors' Report for the financial year ended on March 31, 2011,

Name | Designation| Age Nature of Nahwre of Dufies | Remumenation Qualification Exp. Date of So  |LastEmployment
Employment & received (frs) | Commencement | Equity | & Designation
cther Tems and [Rs.) of Employment | shares held

conditians

i Deep | Chaman | ® Gontrachu Orveral Corirol 2572 La "8E (Hang) 3 01,01, 1587 Tanes Business

Kapuria appontzd fr 3 and policy from BLTE, Pian [1E38%)
period of § year formutation "idavancs Mansgenen
mel 0101207 Programmefrom |IW (K]

"L ead Apsasmany Corse
"Orier Menagemnel
Proramme from
Herward Business Sthoal
W Pras| Managng | 35 | Coolrachadl appoinfed fr | Owerall gorirol T30 Las "B Com (H) from Celi ] 01082000 RS Wilh HeTech
Kapuria | Diredor 2 pesio of § yrarg wel of oy o day University [437%) Geers | =8
(Loean managemen "MBA from Condf Busiess School Director
of i Company "Cefificzie Frogam o Lean
Manidadiring fron nissify
of Michigen
WrAnd | WhoaTims | 32 | Contrecluslappointed | Owsrall conirol B00Lec | "BE inRobobe and Aulomalad B HL05.2008 B Wilh HTech
Kapuria | Director frapencd of Syearswel | ofdayio dy Nisriifadies enginesting (437%) Goars M &
1508200 maragemen from gusesy unwersly, UK Direor
of s Company "Waster's Degpes 1 Robolies
from Camegie Webon Universly
Mote;

Information has been fumnished in respect of employees who were in recaipl of remuneration which in agreegale was not less than Rs. 60,00,000 (Rupees
Sixty Lac only) per annum of was not less than Rs, 500,000 (Rupees Five Lac only) per month. Remuneration include salary, allowance/payment. commission
and expenditure on perquisifes and Company's confribulion fo provident fund None of the emloyess was in receipt of remuneration in excess of that drawn
by any of the Executive Director and holds by himself or afong with his spouse and dependent children bwo percent o more of the equity shares of the
Company. Mr. Deep Kapuria, Mr. Pranav Kapuna and Me. Anuj Kapura are refated lo each other. No other employee is a relative of any Director of the

Company.

ANNEXURE Il

INFORMATION AS PER SECTION 217(1) (e) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 1956, READ WITH COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS IN THE REPORT
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS) RULES, 1988.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS & OUTGO

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

The Company understands the responsibility and need
o conserve energy and has taken up conservation of
energy as a major thrust area by Plant Engineering
and Services., Some of initiatives are as under:
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« The Company has embarked on a project leading
to power saving through equipment redesign
especially in forging which is a major power
consuming process. The cost of the project is Rs.
7.5 lacs

« Another aspect of power cosl saving has been
through improving power factor al Bhiwadi plant by
an Investment of Rs. 24 lacs

+ 11 other improvement projects taken for energy
conservation yielded savings of Rs.25.96 lacs for
EY. 2010-11

« The company is also exploring the option of



purchasing power from other electricity providers
through the Electricity Exchange. This should
reduce the power cost in future,

* To ensure efficient and cost-effective operations
and manitoring of energy consumption, additional
energy meters have also been insialled. These
reading are regularly tracked and countermeasures
taken wherever required to save energy.

New ideas are being adopted across the shop floor,
factary area and even in office premises to conserve
and promote efficiency of operations including working
on the possibility to introduce the solar system for
electricity for lighting in and around factory area and
other non-manufacturing areas.

HGL has set up another slale of the art plant in Bhiwadi,
Rajasthan. This facility is unique in its sense and built
as an ‘'ECOFAC Plant', i.e. a sustainable green
manufacturing plant and Is registered with the Indian
Green Building Councll as a pilot project. Your new
factory building has many energy conservation features,
For example the building has been designed to
maximize usage of natural light by proving large window
openings, special false celling design, usage of FRP
sheets on shop roof sheet, natural lighting cut-out in
administrative building RCC roof. In addition to this,
efficient energy fixtures have been used throughout.
On HVAC, company Installed the Variable Refrigerant
Flow AC system which is highly energy efficient. To
optimize the overall energy design, a modeling was
also prepared and compared with ASHRAE/IESNA 90,1
— 2004 Bassline Model. As per submitted simulation
results, your factory building design has a 20.5% lower
energy use than the Base case (ASHRAE baseling).

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
Efforts made in Technology Absorption:

The steps initiated by the Company for implementation
and absorption of Lean Manufacturing are consistently
showing encouraging results on the shop floor. Your
Company has continuously endeavored to acquire
warld-class technology both in hardware and software.

These efforls shall ensure thal the above sald
technology and the work culture |s hamessed and
percolated down to the entire organization.

iy Specific areas in which Research and Development
carried out by the Company.

Research & Development were carried in product
development, process development, energy
conservation, environment protection, cost reduction
and automation. In this process design and material
database are continuously improved and enhanced.

i) ‘'Gear Grinding' Is one of the key finishing process
technologies that have been fully absorbed by your
company. This gear grinding technology is key for
capturing newer business especially in view of new
emission norms.

iiy Benefits derived with the Installation of various
additional equipments have made it possible to
achieve consistency in production and quality of
finished product.

iv) Future plan of Action
a) Reduction in process losses.
b) Development of new products
v) Expenditure on Research & Development

Development and improvement of produclts has
been an inbuilt and ongoing activity within the
existing manufacturing facilities, it is thus not
recognised separately todate.

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO

The year gone by proved to be a very encouraging
year for exporis. Your Company Increased its export
by 84% compared lo the previous year. The Company
is continuously exploring more customers in export
markels.

The details of Foreign Exchange Inflow and outflow
are as under:

(Rs. In lacs)

Inflow 9002.53
Qutflow

Capital Equipment 423.87

Others 0B.16

Consumables 5252

Annexure -l

Corporate Governance Report

Forming part of 25th Directors’ Report

I. Company's Philosophy on Corporate
Govermnance

Hi-Tech Gears Limited, being in the forefront of the Indian
auto component industry, has implemented and
continuously improved upon various Corporate
Governance practices over the years. Corporate
Governance practices llke the appointment of
professionals from diverse fields of business on the
Company's Board of Directors, prior intimation of date
of Board Meetings which are convened at frequent
Intervals, constitution of committee of Directors, stated
policies on remuneration and retirement, attendance of
Directors at General Meetings, dissemination of price
sensitive Information In a transparent and fair manner
and ensuring liquidity of the Company's scrip by listing
on prominent stock exchanges, have been in place even
before they have been mandated. During the year, the
Company has complied with all the mandatory provisions
of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the stock
exchanges.

Company is maintaining maximum Transparency in
passing on information to the shareholders and the

shareholders have right to acquaint themselves with the
Information of the Company.

Your Company believes in complying with all the
applicable laws of the country, in its letter as well in Spirit.

Il. Composition of Board of Directors

The Board presently consists of 8 (Eight) members of
which 5 (Five) are non-executive Directors having a pool
of collective knowledge from various disciplines like
engineering, finance, treasury, business management,
corporate planning, ete. The Company has an Executive
Chairman and the number of independent Directors are
4 (Four). Mr. Deep Kapuria — Executive Chairman Is the
father of Mr. Pranav Kapuria -Managing Director and
Mr. Anuj Kapuria — Executive Director. All the remaining
Directors except recently appointed Mr. Ramesh Chandra
Jain are independent and not related to each others. Mr.
Ramesh Chandra Jain s receiving consultancy fee from
an Associate Company, thus not regarded independent
In terms of the listing agreemenlt. Mr. Deep Kapuria,
Executive Chairman is assisted by Mr. Pranav Kapuria,
Managing Director, and Mr. Anuj Kapuria Executive
Director, who are overseeing he day-to-day operations
of the Company. All Directors, Executive or Non-
Executive, are professionally competent and experienced
in their respective fields. The Delails of Directors are as
follows:-

Name of Director Designation Category No. of No. of Board No. of
and DIN Director- Committees Board
ships # position as Committee
Member" position as
Chairman *
Mk, Deep Kapuria Execulive Promoter, Execulive Three Nil One
(00006185) Chairman
M. Anil Khanna Director Independent, Non-Execulive | Eleven Two One
(00207839)
Mr. Sandeep Dinodia Director Independent, Mon-Executive Four Two Two
(00005395)
Mr. Pranav Kapuria Managing Promoter, Executive Thres One Nil
(00006195) Director
Mr. Anuj Kapuria Execulive Promoter, Execulive Six Three Nil
(D0006366) Director
Mr. Vinit Taneja Direclor independent, Non-Execulive Nil Cne Nil
(02647727)
M. P. C. Mathew Director independent, Non-Execulive One Nil Nil
(02527048)
M. Ramesh Chandra Jain" | Additional Non-Executive Theee Cne Nl
(00038529) Director

* Board Committee for this purpose includes Audit Committee and Sharehotder sdnvestor Grievance Committee (including

Board committees of Hi-Tech Gears Limited).



** Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain was appointed as an
Additional Direclor in the mesting of the Board of
Directors on 10th August, 2011,

# including all public limited companies, whether lisled
or not (including Hi-Tech Gears Lid) and excluding
private and foreign companies. The DIN of the respective
Directors are provided in pursuant fo Section 266 F of
the Companies Act, 1956

Number of Board Meetings held during the year

During the year under review, the member of the Board
have met & (Six) times lo review, discuss and decide
about the activities of business of the Company. The
dates of the meetings are (1) May 15, 2010, (2) July 24,
2010, (3) October 27, 2010 (4) December 4, 2010, (5)
January 31, 2011 and (8) March 14, 2011

Attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings and
the last Annual General Meeting

Name of Director Attendancein | Attendancein
the Board the last Annual
Meetings General Meeting

Mr. Deep Kapuria (i Yes

Mr. Anll Khanna 5 No

Mr. Sandeep Dinodia (i Yes

Mr. P C Mathew 5 No

Mr. Vinil Taneja 5 No

Mr. Pranav Kapuria 6 Yes

Mr. Anuj Kapuria 5 Yes

Directors appointment/ reappointment

Mr. Anil Kumar Khanna and Mr. Pranav Kapuria, Direclors
of the Company, retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting and being eligible offer themselves for
re-appointment. Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain was
appointed as the additional Director of the Company,
whose confirmation as Director is also due at this ensuing
Annual General Meeting. The particulars of Directors
being appointed and re-appointed are given in the
Explanatory Statement attached lo the Notice of the
Annual General Meeling of the Company.

Shares held by Non-Executive Director(s)

Mr. Vinit Taneja held 5600 equity shares as on 31st
March, 2011, No other Non-Executive Director holds any
equity shares as on that date.

. Audit Committee
Brief description of terms of reference

The Audit Committee of your Company consists ofthree
Directors. Two of the members are Independent & Non-
Executive Directors viz., Mr. Sandeep Dinodia and Mr.
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Anil Khanna, who are members of the Institute of
Charfered Accountants of India, Further, the Company
also complies with the provisions of Section 292A of the
Companies Act, 18956, pertaining to the Audit Committee
and its functioning. The scope of functions of the
committee is in line with the listing agreement.

Meeting and attendance

The Audit Committee met 4 (Four) times during the
financlal year 2010-11 on the following dates (1) May
18, 2010, (2) July 24, 2010, (3) October 27, 2010 and
(4) January 31, 2011

These meetings were attended by members as detailed
below:-

ane Postion. | Independent: | o o Hestings | N, of Heskngs
Compasitien | Non Independent During Aftended
{he Tenmre

Ut Sartesy | oraman d Uemier | ndependen 1 [
Dinodia

Hr Al Wamber Independent 4 4
Khama
I:r. ing Wember Exeoutve [ '

AT

Company Secretary acts as the secretary of the Audit
Committee.

Powers of Audit Committee
Audit Commities shall have following Powers:-

a. To investigate any activity within its terms of
reference;

b. Toseekinformation from any employee;

To oblain outside legal or olher professional advice;

To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant

expertise, if it considers necessary.

Role of Audit Committee

1. Owversight of the Company's financial reporting
process and the disclosure of its financial information
to ensure that the financial statement Is correct,
sufficient and credible.

2. Recommending lo the Board, the appointment, re-
appointment and, if required, the replacement or
removal of the statutory auditor and the fixation of
audit fees.

3. Approval of payment to statutory audilors for any
other services rendered by the statutory auditors,

4. Reviewing, with the management, the half yearly and
annual financlal statements before submission to the
Board for approval, with paricular reference to:

a. Matters required to be included In the Director's
Responsibility Statement to be included in the
Board's report in terms of clause (2A4) of section
217 of the Companies Act, 1956
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b. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and
practices and reasons for the same

c. Major accounting entries invelving estimales
based on the exercise of judgment by
management

d. Significant adjustmenls made in the financial
statements arising out of audit findings

e. Compliance with listing and other legal
requirements relating o financial statements

f. Disclosure of any related party transactions
g. Qualifications in the draft audit report.

Reviewing, with the management, the guarierly
financial statements before submission to the Board
for appraval.

Reviewing, with the management, the statement of
uses /[ application of funds raised through an issue
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.),
the statement of funds utilized for purposes other
than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/
notice and the report submitted by the maonitoring
agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a
public or righls issue, and making appropriate
recommendations fo the Board to take up steps in
this matter.

Reviewing, with the management, performance of
statutory and internal auditors, and adequacy of the
internal control systems.

Reviewing the adequacy of Internal audit function, If
any, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official
heading the department, reporting structure
coverage and frequency of Intermal audit,
Discussion with internal auditors any significant
findings and fallow up there on.

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations
by the internal auditers into matters where there is
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal
control systems of a material nature and reporting
the malter to the Board.

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit
commences, about the nature and scope of audit as
well as post-audit discussion to ascerain any area
of cancern.

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in
the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of non payment of declared
dividends) and creditors.

To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower
mechanism, In case the same is existing.

To review the Company's financial and risk
management palicies.
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Review of information by Audit Committee

The Audit Commiltee shall mandaterily review the
following information:-

1. Management discussion and analysis of financial
condition and results of operations.

2. Statement of significant related party transactions
{as defined by the audil commitlee), submitted by
management,

3. Management letters / letters of internal control
weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors.

4. Internal audit reports relating to internal control
weaknesses.

5. The appointment, removal and terms of
remuneration of the Chief internal auditor shall be
subject to review by the Audit Committes.

. Remuneration Committee
Brief description of terms of reference

The scope of functions of the Remuneration Committes
is to look into Company's policy on specific/general
remuneration packages, for executive as well as the non-
executive Directors, including pension rights and any
compensation payment. The Company Secretary acts
as the Secretary of the Remuneration Committes.

Meetings and attendance

The Remuneration Committee met Two (2) times during
the financial year 2010-11 on the following dates (1) May
15, 2010and (2) July 24, 2010,

These meetings were attended by members as detailed
below:-

[Mame Position/ Independenti | Mo. of Meetings | No. of Meetings
Composition | Mon Independent]  During Attended
the Tenure

MrVint  |Chabman § Member|  indepandent ! !

Tane

Wi Sandesed  Mamber Indepandant 1 i
Dnoda

Mr. Anil Member hdependent 2 2
Khanna

Remuneration policy

The Chairman, Managing Director and the Whole Time
Director are paid remuneration as approved by the Board
of Directors on the recommendation of the remuneration
committee. The remuneration is fixed considering various
factors such as qualification, experience, expertise,
prevalling remuneration in the corporate world, financial
position of the Company, etc. The remuneration structure
of Executive Directors comprises of basic salary,
comimission, parquisiles, allowances, contribution to
provident fund and other funds, and commission, which



Is in accordance with Section 198 and Section 309 of
the Companles Act, 1956, The Non-Execulive Directors
do not draw any remuneration from the Company except
sitling fees for attending Board & Committee Meetings,
& commission @ 0.5% of Net Profits in a Financial Year
for all Non-Executive Directors together.

(a) The Non-Exscutive Directors play an aclive role in
the meelings of the Board and are associated with
the Various Board Committees. They also bring
independent judgment in the Board's deliberations
and decisions. The details of the remuneration paid
to the Chairman, Managing Director and Whole Time
Director for the year ended March 31, 2011, are as
under: -

(Amount in Lacs)

Name of |Designation| Salary {Perquisites [Commission | Total | Service |  Dateof
Direchar Contracts (Commencement
fyears) | of contract

Wr Desn | Exvecufive |G0.24] B3 115 BT SYeas | 01012007
Kepria | Chaiman

|u..~ p| Managng [2500] 23 | oum Jeae| sves | oromame
Kz | Diede
Woing | Sene |1hes] 13 | sem [son] gvews | 1sosam

Kol | Diredder

MNote:-

1. Salary includes basic salary & HR, Perquisiies
includes medical, other perquisites | allowances
and contribution to provident and other funds.

2. Total Commission is @ 3% of the Net Profit in
case of Mr. Deep Kapuria & 1.5% in case of Mr.
Pranav Kapuria & Mr. Anuj Kapuria calculated
In terms of section 198 & aother applicable
provision of Companies Act, 19586,

3. The remuneration paid to Mr. Deep Kapuria,
Chairman is as per the limils approved by the
Central Government under Section 269 & 198(4)/
309(3) and 637AA of the Companies Act, 1956
vide its letter no. 12/243/2007-CL.VI| dt.
15.10.2007.

(b) The details of the remuneration paid to the Non-
Executive Directors for the year ended March 31,
2011 are as under: -

Mo.| Name of the Non- Sifting fees (Rs) | Commission Total
Execulive Directors

1. | Mr. Anil Khanna 45,000 13,645 45545
2. | Mr Sandesp Dinodia | 60,000 03645 363545
3. | M PG Mahew 25,000 03645 J2B645
d. | Mr. Vinil Tengja 35,000 03545 KLU
B | Mr Anyj Kapuria 10,000 - 10,000
[ | Total 1,75,000 1214530 1380580
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Naote: 1. No stock option scheme has been launched by
the Company lill date

2 Mr. Anyj Kapuria was appointed as Whaole Time
Director we.f. 15.05.2010 however, before his
appointment he was drawing sitling fee.

V.  (a) Investor Grievance Committee
Brief description of terms of reference

An Investor Grievance Commitlee was constituted to
specifically redress the grievances of the shareholders
pertaining to shares transfer, dematerialization and non-
receipt of dividend on the shares, non-receipt of Annual
Repaort, elc.

Composition, Name of Members and Chairman

The Investor Grievance Commitles consisls of the
following Directors all being Non-Executive &
Independent Directors:

1. Mr. Anil Khanna- Chairman and Member.
2, Mr. Sandeep Dinodia- Member.
3. Mr. Vinil Tangja- Member.

The Company secretary acls as the secretary of the
Committee.

Name and Designation of the Compliance officer
Mr. S.K. Khatr, Company Secretary

The shareholder complaint received, redressed &
pending during the financial year 2010-11 is NIL.

Meeting and attendance

As the complaints are solved by the process mechanism,
there was no Instance required to hold the commitiee
meeting.

{b) Share Transfers Committee

The shares of the Company are traded in the compulsory
Demal mode for all investors. All requests for physical
share transfer and dematerialization of shares (if in order
and complete in all respect) are processed and confirmed
within a period of 21 days.

A committee of two Directors. under the nomenclature
‘Share Transfer Committee' has been empowered to
approve transfer, transmission, demat and other related
matters regarding the shares of the Company.

1. The Share Transfer Committee of the Company
comprises of following Directors:-

Mr. Deep Kapuria - Chairman
Mr. Pranav Kapuria - Managing Director

The Company secretary acts as the secrelary of the
Committee

2. The committee met 11 (Eleven) times during the year
to consider the matters relating to transfer,
transmission and transposition of shares, sub-
division and consolidation of shares, replacement

VI,  Annual General Meeting

of lost/stolen/mutilated share certificates and review
of dematenialization and re-matenalization of shares.

3. As on 31st March, 2011 no equity shares were
pending for ransfer,

(a) Details of last three Annual General Meetings (AGM) of the Company are given hereunder:

Financial Year | Date Time Venue Mo. of Special Resolution Passed
200910 September 11.00 4. M. A-889 Industrial Four
27,2010 Complex, Bhiwadi —
301018 (Rajasthan)
2008-00 September 11.00A.M. A-589, Industrial One
22,2009 Complex, Bhiwadi —
301019 {Rajasthan}
2007-08 September .00 AM, A-589, Industrial Mil
22 2008 Complex, Bhiwadi -
301012 (Rajasthan)

(b) No special resolution was passed by way of postal ballot during the year 2010-2011.
(c) At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, there is no item for approval through Postal Ballot.

({d) Dividend history of last five years

5. No. Financial year Rate of Dividend Date of Declaration
1. 2008-2010 Final — 45% 27-09-2010
2. 2008-2009 Firal —15% 22-08-2009
a 2007-2008 Final — 30% 22-08.2008
4 2006-2007 Interim — 15% 14-03-2007
Final = 10% 17-09-2007
5, 2005-2006 Final -25% 11-02-2006

For the year 2010-11, the interim dividend @ 15% was declared on 14th March, 2011

Vil Disclosures

1. Related parties and transactions with them as required under Accounting Standard 18 (AS-18) and clause 32 of the

Listing agreement are as under:
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{Amount Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars Aquanan Vulcan Getrag Hi- Hi-Tech Independent
Fibrecement| Electro Tech Gears Robatic . Deep . Pranav M. Ay Director &
Put. Lid Controls (India) Pvt. | Systemz Kapuria Kapuria Kapuria Non
Ltd. Ltd Ltd, Executive
Director
Key Key Key Key
Nature of Associate | Associate Associate | Associate | Management | Management | Management | Management
Relationship Company | Company Company | Company| Personnel Personnel Personnel Personnel
Rent 108.00 filiy) 000 0,00 000 000 0,00 0,00
Sale of Goods 000 0.00 4014 000 0.00 0.00 (.00 0.00
Job work! Senaces Provided 000 130.56 1342 (.00 0.00 (.00 (.00 (.00
Job workl Senaces Recenved 000 306,74 000 15147 0.00 0.00 0.00 .00
Purchase Malerial 0,00 24 000 0.00 0,00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Director's Remuneralion 000 (.00 0.00 0.00 739 130.44 B6.61 1215
Direclors' EPF & Perquisies 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 83 259 139 0.00
Silting fees to ather Dirsclor 000 0.00 0000 0,00 000 0.00 010 1.75
Balance As On 31.03.11 0.00 0.00 31360 (.00 0.00 000 0.00 0.00
(Recoverabie)
Balance As On 31.03.11 (Payable) 41.06 Ho47 000 0 166,06 19,96 70N 0.00

The transaclions with the Related parties are neither
materially significant nor they have potential conflict with

other authorities, on any matters related o capital
markets, during the last three years.

6 Compliance status with Non-Mandatory
Requirements are given below:

a) The Board

The Chairman of the Company is Executive and the
Company is maintaining the office atits expense.
The Company has not provided any tenure for the
independent Directors.

b} Remuneration Committes

All the requirements relating to the Remuneration

Committes have been complied with and details of
the Committee are provided in the Annual Report.

¢} Shareholder Right

The Company does not send half yearly declaration
of financial performance to each household
shareholder, asitis displayed on Company's website,

d} Training of Board Members

The Company does not have any formal training
program for Board Members.

e} There is no separate formal mechanism for
aevaluating Non-Executive Board Members.

fi The Company does not have "Whistle Blower Policy”
for the time being.

6. Risk Assessment and Mitigation Process.

Company has a risk assessment policy which is
periodically reviewed by the Board of Directors in their
meeting and it lakes the appropriate measures.

1. The quarterly, half yearly and annual financial results
and quarterly shareholding pattern are posted on the
Company's official website i e. www hitechgears.com. As
per the requirements of listing agreement, the Company
also sends the same to Stock Exchange and upload on
the corporate filling and dissemination System website
of SEBl www corpfiling co in within such ime as specified
by SEBI.

2. Fullversion of the Annual Repertincluding the notice
of Annual General Meeting, Corporate Governance
report, Audited Financial Results, cash flow statement,
Director's report are sent to the shareholders within the
stipulated time and also uploaded on Company's Official
website.

Viil. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

3. All material information about the Company is

promptly sent through facsimile to the Stock Exchanges
where the shares of the Company are listed.

4. The Company has not displayed any official news
release during the year under review except as required
by the Listing Agreement mentioned in point 1 above.

5. The Company has not made any presentaions to
institutional investors or to the analyst during the year
under review.

6. A Management Discussion and Analysis report is
given separately which forms part of the Director’s
Report.

7. The Company generally publishes its financial results
in the Business Standard (English) and Dainik Lokmat
(Hindi).

Financial Results Newspapears Date of Publication
Audited financial results for the quarter * Business Standard 26052011
and year ended March 31, 2011, = Dainik Lokmat 26052011
Unaudited financial results for the quarter * Business Standard 01.02.2011
ended December 31, 2010. + Dainik Lokmat 01.02.2011
Unaudited financial results for the quarter « Business Standard 28.10.2010
ended September 30, 2010 = Dainik Lokmat 28.10.2010
Unaudited financial results for the quarter + Business Standard 25.07.2010
ended June 30, 2010 = Dainik Lokmat 25.07.2010

the interest of the Company at large. 4. The Company has complied with all the mandatory
3. There has neither been any non-compliance of any requirements of Clause 48 of Listing Agreement
legal provision of applicable law, nor any penaity entered into with stock exchanges. Details of these
stricture imposed by the Stock Exchanges or compliances are given below:
Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI) or any
Particulars Clause of Listing agreement Compliance Status YesNo
1. Board of Directors 497)
{A} Composition of Board 49 (1A Complied
{B) Non-execulive Directors’ compensalion & disclosires 49 (18) Complied
{C] Other prowisions as [0 Board_and Commiiees 49{IC) Comphed
{U) Code of Conduct 49(I0) Complied
I Audit Committee aa
(A) Qualified & Independent Audit Commitee 49 (J14) Complied
(E) Medling of Audt Commities 19(16) Compied
{C) Powers of Audit Committes 45 {[1C) Complied
(0] Role ol Audi Commiflee 43 (D) Comphed
{E) Review of Information by Audl Commiliee 491E) Complied
1. Subsidiary Companies 19 Not Appicable
IV. Disclosures 49
{A) Basis of related parfy ransadtions 44 IV A) Complied
{B} Lisclosure of Accounting Treaiment 43{\VE) Complied
{C) Board Disdosures - Risk management 19V C) Complied
{DiProceeds from public issues, rights Issues, preferential ssues elc. 44 [I'Iﬂj:l Not Apphicable
{E} Remuneration of Diredors 43(VE) Complied
Management (V) Complied
'E?”aemmm WG Comphed
V. CEQICFO Certification ﬂﬂﬂ Comphed
[VT_Report on Corporate Governance 19 Compied
VIL Compliance 48 Complied
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1X. General Shareholder information

1. Annual General Meeting:

&5 Amua Genaral Meeing of the Company will be heid on Tuesday the 27 day of
Saplember, 2011 al 11.00 AM al the Regslered Office of the Company siuated at
A-589, Indusiial Compiax, Bhiwadi, Distl Alwar, Refasthan 301018

2. Financial Calendar for Risults were-ennouncad on
2010-201
Financial Repering for e 1 querter  July 24, 2000
ended Juna 3, 2010
Financial Reperfing for e 2 quarler  Oslober 27, 2010
and 1% half year ended
Saplember 30, 2010
Arancial Reporfing for e 3 quarler  January 31, 2011
ended Dacembar 31, 2010,
Finsncial Reporfing for e &° quarkr  May 5, 01

and year ended Mareh 31, 2011

Finantial Calendar for 2011-2012
(lentative and subjeet bo change)

Financial Reporfing for e ™ querter
ended June 30, 2011

Financia Regorfng for e 2 quarles
and 13t half year ended

Seplember 30, 201

Financial Reporfng for fhe 3 quarler
endad Decembar 31, 2011

Financial Regorfing for the year
ended Mach 31, 2012

10 August, 2011 {2nd Wesk)
(Aready amnounced)
November, 2011 {2nd Weak|

February, 2012 (204 Wesk)

May, 2012 {Last wesk)

HITECHGEAR 522073

Annud Gerera| Weeling for fe year
2010-11 {nat fo change)
3. Date of Book Closure

4. Dividend payment

5. Listing on Stock Exchanges

Seplamber 27, 201

Saplember 16 lo Seplember 27, 2011
(Both days inclusive)

Fingd Dividend, If declared by 1he
sharenclders in 1he forfhcaming Annusl
Generdl Mesting, shall be paidasRs 250
per share le. @25% lo fhose
shareholders whose name appears on
e Register of members as an
September 27, 201

In respect of fhe shanes head in efackonic
form, Yo Tose members whase names
gopear in e stafements of tenaficial
cwnership fumished by Deposilonies
(NSDLICDSL) es 8! the ent of business
hiours on Seplember 15, 01

A on Marh 31, 2011 e squily sharss
of the Company are listed on the foligwing
Sleck Bxchanges:-

&) National Stock Exchange of India
Limited Exchange Plaza, Bh Floor,Fiel
no. -1, Biock - GBandra - Kurla
Complex, Bandra |} Mumbai - 400051,
India.Bloek Code- HITECHGEAR,
g2

b.) Bombay Stock Exchange Limited
Priroze Jesjesbhoy Towers, 25% Floar,
Dalal Siree), Mumbai Stock Code -

Note: The listing fee for the year 2011-2012 has been pald to the Stock Exchanges within the stipulated time. Further the
Company also confirms that the cuslodian fee for the year 2011-12 to NSDL & CDSL js also paid within the stipulated

[7]
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7. Performance in comparison to Broad Based Indices:-
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6. Market Price Data
Month Bombay Stock Exchange Limited Mational Stock Exchange of India

(BSE) Limited (NSE)
2010-2011 Share Price (Rs.) Volume (Nos.) Share Price (Rs.) Volume (Nos.)
High Low High Low

April 184.50 175.00 9379 197.95 120.15 398184
May 191.00 145.00 79152 191.70 146.25 95086
June 188.50 158.15 55110 188.45 153.25 46862
July 204.75 182.00 132379 204.75 181.05 166821
August 213,70 181.25 129275 21470 181.05 127947
September 217.75 196.30 63000 221.00 195.10 125002
Cclober 28110 201.80 315857 282.00 195.10 427167
Movember 282.85 203.00 106525 282.00 24550 124678
December 135.75 97.00 167469 144.50 88.10 3074438
January 125.55 100.75 43188 125.00 102.10 105428
February 118.05 9510 186397 118.60 81.20 2656035
March 111.95 101.15 75130 11240 100.30 125520

Monthly high and low prices of equity shares of the
Company at BSE and NSE during the year under review
are given hereunder.

8. Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

MAS Services Limited, Mew Delhi is the Registrar and
Share Transfer Agent of the Company for handling the
share transfer work both in physical and electronic form.
All the correspondences relating to share transfer,
transmission, dematerialization, rematerialisation etc.
can be made at the following address:-

MAS Services Limited

{Unit; Hi-Tech Gears Limited)

T-34, 2nd Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase -,
Mew Delhi — 110020.

Ph.: 011 - 26387281, 82, 83

Fax : 011 - 26387384

Web site; www. masserv.com

Email: info@masserv.com

Email ID for redressal of Investor Grievances

Pursuant to Clause 47(c) of the Listing Agreement,
Company has created a separate Email |D for
redressal of Investor Complaints and Grievances. The

Email ID is secretarial@hitechgears com
9. Share Transfer System

The shares of the Company are traded in the compulsory
demat mode for all investors. All physical share transfers,
dematerialization etc are handled by MAS Services Lid.,
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company and
the request for physical share transfer and
dematerialization of shares (if found in order and
complete in all respect) are processed and confirmed
within a pericd of 21 days.

To expedite the share transfer process, authority has
been delegated to the Share Transfer Committee which
comprises of two Directors. Share transfer/transmission
approved by the Committee is placed at the meeting of
the Board of Directors from time to time.
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10. (a) Distribution of shareholding

Az on March 31, 2011 the distibution of shareholding was as follows:

11. {a) Dematerialisation of shares and liquidity

The equity shares of the Company are compulsorily
fraded and settled only in the dematenalized form under
ISIN No. INE127B01011. Your Company is maintaining
connechvity with both the Depositones i.e. NSDL and
CDsL. The members are requested to dematenalize their
physical holding in view of vanious advantages in
dematenalized form.

The details of the equity shares of the Company
dematerialized as on March 31, 2011 is given hereunder;

Farticulars R on March 31, 2011

Ko, of 3hares Percantags ()

Mo, of Shares dematerialized

Shareholding of nominal value in Rs. Shareholding Shareholders
Mo. of Shares Mumber % %

Upto 5000 384287 2805 2047 76 308
5001 to 10000 289331 373 1,595 10 147
10001 1o 20000 297202 192 1584 5223
20001 to 30000 176787 55 0942 16850
30001 to 40000 205424 55 1.095 1496
40001 to 50000 116804 25 0622 0.880
50001 to 100000 521673 56 2780 1.795
100001 and ahove 18786531 g2 B9 336 2503
Total 18768000 3676 100.000 100.000

<NSOL 7313808 45
-GDSL 58823 KRT]
Wo. of shamss in physical form 265368 141
Total 18T6ED00 10000

(b} Category wise shareholding as on March 31, 2011

(b} Liquidity

The equity shares of the Company are liquid and
frequently traded. Average daily turmover of number of
shares traded as well as value during the year 2010
2011 is given below:-

NSE BSE
Mo of Shares 7635.00 6822 46
Value (in Rs.) 1637952.76 1268101.38

ason 31.03.2011

i Public

B Fromoters

m yutual funds, Financial
Institutions & Banks

W Bodies Corporate

Category MNo. of shares held % of shareholding
Fromoters & Fromoter Group 10322317 55.00
Mutual funds 400 0.039
Banks, Financial institutions, Insurance companies 4000 0021
Fareign Institutional Investar il il
Private Corporate Bodies 2159614 11807
Indian Public 4778719 25 463
Mon Resident Indians! Cverseas Corporate Bodies 1470553 7835
Clearing Member 25397 0135
Grand Total 18768000 100.00
Shareholding Pattern
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412 Outstanding GDRs /ADRs /Warrants or any
convertible instruments, conversion date and likely

impact on equity.
The Company has notissued any GDRs/ADRsM\arrants

or any Convertible instruments, hence this section is not

applicable to the Company.
13. Plant Locations

The Company’s manufactunng facilites are located at
the following locations:

5. o] Bhismdi Plamt Manesar Plant

1. | A58, Industrisf Complar, Bhiwad], | 2 Piot Mo, 24, 158 26, Sector 7, IMT
Digtricd Alwar, Rajasthan - 301018 | Manesar Gurgaon, Haryana- 122450

14. Address for correspondence

4 Translerilematenslestion of sharee  MAS Services Limited

annd any other quenes relation 1o (Unit HisTech Giars Limited)

Shares [-24, nd Floor, Okhta Indusdnal Area,
Phiasall, New Delhi-1 10020
Ph- 002638781, B2/ 83
Fa 0112657384
Wied =ile wow, mispeng com
Emad efofmassen com

1

b Cluesies relabed 1o Payment of M &K Khalii
devidond on Shanes, Annual Repod  Company Sacilary,

and dhers {dth Floor, ToweeE, Unied's

Mdenniven Plazs, Shushant Lok-1,
sodor-27, Gurgacn, hanyana-128002
Ted Mioc {0124) 4715100

Fax (0124) -2R06085

Emd saomtanadihilachpeens com

15. Code of conduct for the Board Members and
Senior Management Personnel

The Board of Directors has approved a Code of Conduct
for Board Members and Senior Management Personnsl
of the Company. This code is also available on the
website of the Company, www hitechgears com. In terms
of revised Clausea 49 of listing agreement, a confirmation
from the Managing Director regarding compliance with
the Code of Conduct by all the Directors and Senior
Management is given along with this report.

16. CEQ/CFO Certification

In terms of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, the
certification by the CEQ and CFO on the financial
statements and internal controls relating to financial
reporting has been obtained, and placed before the
Board, in their meeting held on May 25, 2011, A copy of
the same certificate dated 15.5.2010is given along with
this report.

17. Insider Trading Code

The Company has formulated a Code of conduct for
prevention of Insider Trading pursuant to Secunties and
Exchange Board of India (Insider Trading) (Amendment)
Regulations, 2002 to prevent practices of Insider rading.
Mr. 5. K Ehatn, Company Secratary has bean designated
as Compliance Officer for this purpose. Employees of
the Company have afirmed comphances with the Insider
Trade Code,

18. Legal Compliance

There were no cases of non-compliance by the Company
and no penalties or strictures have baen imposed on or
proposed against the Company by the stock exchange
{s) and/or SEBI| and/orany other statutory authorities on
matters relating to capital market. The Company has
complied with the provisions of relevant Acts, Rules &
Regulations framed there under during the year 2010-
2011
By Order of the Board
For Hi - Tech Gears Limited

Place : New Delhi
Dated : August 10, 2011

Deep Kapuria
Chairman



AUDITORS CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE UNDER CLAUSE 49 OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT,

To

The Members of
Hi-Tech Gears Ltd.
Bhiwadi.

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Hi-Tech Gears Limited, for the year
ended on March 31, 2011, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Company with the Stock
Exchangg(s).

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Govermnance s the responsibility of the management. Our examination
was limited to a review of the procedures and implementations thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring
compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance. It Is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion of the
financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us. we cedify that the
Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing
Agreement,

We state that no investor grievance Is pending exceeding one month against the Company as per the records
maintained by the Company.

We slate that such compliance Is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For GUPTA VIGG & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Place : New Delhi CA.Kawal Jain
Date: 24.5.2011 Partner
Membership No, 089214

Firm No. 001393N

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT FOR BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SR. MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL.

The Beard of Directors
Hi-Tech Gears Limited

A-589, Industrial Complex,
Dist. Alwar, Bhiwadi — 301019,
Rajasthan.

I, Pranav Kapuria, Managing Director of the Company hereby certify that the Board of Directors and the
Sr. Management Personnel have affirmed compliance of the Code of Conduct of the Company for the Financial year
2010-2011.

For Hi-Tech Gears Ltd

Place: New Delhi Pranav Kapuria
Date: March 31, 2011 Managing Director
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We, the undersigned, in our respeclive capacities as Chief Executive Officer and General Manager (Finance) of Hi-
Tech Gears Ltd. ("the Company) to the best of our knowledge and belief certify that:

{a) We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the financial year 2010-11 and that
to the best of our knowledge and belief:

i. These statements do not contain any matenally untrue statement or omit any matenial fact or contain
statements that might be misleading,

ii. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

{b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year
which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the Company's code of conduct.

{c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have
evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and
wa have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committes, deficiencies in the design or operation of such
internal confrols, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken and/or propose to fake to rectify

these deficiencies.
{(d) We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committes, wherever applicable, the following:

i. significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

ii. significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements; and

iii. instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the
management or an employes having a significant role in the Company s internal contral system over financial

reporting,
For Hi-Tech Gears Limited For Hi-Tech Gears Limited
Sdf Sd/
Place: Gurgaon ijay Mathur Pranav Kapuria
Date: 15.05.2011 General Manager (Finance) Chief Executive Officer



Awards and Recognitions

International Level Gold Award
fram QCFI CQCC-2010 In

Hyderabad
Excellent Award from QCFI-2010 Trident Quality Ploneer Award
in Bangalore North West Quality Tech Award-
Chandigarh
(Medium Business Cat. - 2* Prize)

Chapter Level Gold Award from QCFI
CCQC-2010 In Delhl
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AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members of
HI-TECH GEARS LIMITED

1.

We have audited the attached Balance sheet of
HI-TECH GEARS LIMITED as at 31¢ March
2011 and also the Profit & Loss Account and
the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on
that date annexed thereto. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the
Company's Management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in India.
Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatements.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion,

As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report)
Order, 2003 [as amended by the Companies
{Auditor's Report) (Amendment) order, 2004 ]
issued by the Central Government of India in
terms of sub-section(4A) of section 227 of the
Companies Act, 1956, we enclose in the
Annexure a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 4 & 5 of the said Order.

Further to our comments in the Annexure
referred to above, we report that

i)  We have obtained all the information and
explanations, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit.

i) Inouropinion, proper books of accounts as
raquired by law have been kept by the
Company, so far as appears from our
examination of those books,

i) The Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Account
and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this

wi)

report are in agreement with the books of
account,

In our opinion, the Balance sheet, Profit &
Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this report comply with the
accounting standards referred to in sub-
section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies
Act, 1956;

On the basis of the written representation
received from the Director, as on 317 March
2011 and taken on record by the board of
Director, we report that none of the Directors
is disgualified as on 31% March 2011 from
being appointed as a in term of requirement
under Sechon 274(1)(g) of the Companies
Act , 1958,

In our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the
explanations given to us, the said accounts,
read together with the Significant Accounting
policies, and notes appearing thereon as
contained in Schedule 17 give the
information as required by The Companies
Act, 1956, in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted
in India:

a) Inthe case of the Balance sheet, of
the state of affairs of the Company
as at 31* March, 2011.

b} In the case of the Profit and Loss
Account, of the profit for the year
ended on that date.

¢} Inthe case of Cash Flow Statement,
of the cash flow for the year ended
on that date.

For GUPTAVIGG & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FIRM REGN. NO. 001393N

Place : New Delhi (CA. KAWAL JAIN)
Dated : May 25, 2011, PARTNER

Membership No 089214



(M

i)

iii)

iv)

v)

ANNEXURE REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH ‘3' OF THE AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE ACCOUNTS OF HI-
TECH GEARS LMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31* MARCH 2011.

(@)

(b)

(c)
(@)

(b)

(c)

(@)

(€)

(@)

The Company has maintained proper records
to show full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of all fixed assets.

All the fixed assels have been physically
verified by the management during the year
except for fumiture and fixtures and office
equipments. No material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

Mo substantial part of Fixed Asset has been
disposed off during the year.

The Inveniory has been physically verified
during the year by the management. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification is
reasonable.

The procedures of physical verification of
Inventaries followed by the management are
reasonable and adequate in relation to the
size of the Company and its nature of
business.

On the basis of our examination of the records
of inventory, we are of the opinion that the
Company is maintaining proper records of
inventory. The discrepancies noticed on
verification between the physical stocks and
the book records were not material.

The company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms or
other parties listed in the register maintained
under section 301 of The Companies Act,
1956.Hence Clause 4 (iii) (b), 4 (i) (c) and
Clause 4 {jii) (d) is not applicable.

The company has not taken any loans,
secured or unsecured from companies, firms
or other parties listed In the register
maintained under section 301 of The
Companies Acl, 1956, Hence Clause 4 (iii)
(f) and Clause 4 (iii) (g) Is not applicable,

In our opinion and according to the information
and explanation given to us, there are
adequate internal control procedures
commensurate with the size of the Company
and the nature of its business with regard to
purchases of Inventory, fixed assets and for
sale of goods and services, During the course
of audit, we have not observed any continuing
failure to correct major weakness in internal
cantrol.

Based on our audit procedure and according
to information and explanation given to us by
the management, we are of the opinion that
the transactions that need to be entered in to

i)

vil)

viil)

the registered maintained under Section 301
of The Companies Act, 1956 have been so
entered,

(b) Based on our audit procedure and according
lo information and explanation given to us by
the management, we are of the opinion that
the transaction made in pursuance of
contracts and arrangements entered in the
registered maintained under sectlon 301 In
respect of any party during the year have been
made at prices which are reasonable having
regard to prevailing market prices at the
relevant time.

According to the information and explanation given
to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits
from the public, under section 58A and 58AA of the
Companies Act, 1956 and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 1975.

In our cpinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has an
adeguate intemal audit system commensurate with
the size and nature of its business.

We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts
relating to materials, labour and other items of cost
malntained by the company pursuant to the rules
made by the Central Government for the
maintenance of cost records under section 209(1)
{d) of the Companies Act, 1956 and we are of the
opinion that prima facie the prescribed accounts
and records have been made and maintained.
However, we have not made a detailed examination
of the records with a view to determine whether
they are accurate or complete.

{a) Accordingtothe records, undisputed statutory
dues including Provident Fund, Investor Education
and Protection Fund, Employees Stale Insurance,
Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Sales Tax, Customs duty
and Excise Duty, Cess, Service Tax have generally
been deposited with the appropriate authorities.
According to the information and explanation given
to us, there are no undisputed amounts payablein
respect of Provident Fund, Investor Education and
Protection Fund, Employees State Insurance
Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Sales Tax, Customs duty
and Excise Duty, Education Cess, Service Tax
which were outstanding, as at 31" March, 2011 for
a period of more than six months, from the date
they became payable.

(b} Accordinglo the information and explanations

given to us, no dues of Provident Fund,
Investor Education and Protection Fund,

Employees State Insurance Income Tax,
Wealth Tax, Sales Tax, Customs duty and
Excise Duty, Education Cess, Service Tax
which have not been deposited on account
of any dispute except the following:

Naure of Statuts Nl of | Yeur Amount Forum where
Dugs dispute &
pandng
Asst Commissionar | Rajasthan | 200708 | 171884000 |Rasasthan High-
of Commercsl Takon ol Jaigur,
Tawes Dapfl. Entry of
Bhiwadi BGoods
ink Local
Area A,
1654
hisst Commissoner | Rajasthan | 200808 | 1,351717.00 |Raiasthan Hah-
of Commerasl Tax on - Jaipur
Taras Dept Enty of
Briwadi Gonts i
Loas! Area
At 1500
Dy, Cormmissioner | Sales Tax | 2008-10 | 74528300 | Commissioner
of Cammerdal Aopes!, Ranchi
Tanes Division,
Jharkhand
x)  The Company has no accumulated losses and has

xi)

i)

not incurred any cash losses during the financial
year covered by our audit or in the immediately
preceding financial year.

Based on our audit procedures and on the
information and explanations given by the
management, we are of the opinion that the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues
to any financial institution and banks.

The Company has not granted any loans and
advances on the basis of security by way of pledge
of shares, debentures and other securities, during
the year under audit.

In our opinion, the Company is not a chit fund ora
nidhi/mutual benefit fund/society. Therefore, the
provisions of clause 4(xiii) of this order are not
applicable to the Company:.

According to the information and explanation
provided to us, we are of the opinion that the
Company is not dealing in or trading in shares,
securities, debentures and other investments.
Accordingly the provisions of clause 4{xiv) of this
order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given
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wvi)

xvii)

to us, the Company has not given any guarantee
for loans taken by others from bank or financial
institutions,

The term loans have been applied for the purpose
for which they were raised.

According to the infarmation and explanation given
to us and on an overall examination of the Balance
Sheet of the Company, we report that funds raised
on short tarm basis have not been used for long-
term investment.

xwiii) During the period covered by our audit report, the

®ix)

xx)

%xx)

Place : New Delhi
Dated : 25.05.2011

Company has notmade any preferential allotment
of shares to parties and companies covered in the
Register maintained u/s 301 of the Act.

During the period covered by our audit report, the
Company has not issued any debentures.

The Company has not raised any money by way of
public issue.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and
information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud on or by the
Company has been noticed or reported during the
course of our audit.

For GUPTAVIGG & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FIRM REGN. NO. 001393N

(CA. KAWAL JAIN)
PARTNER
Membership No.089214



BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st March 2011

PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR EN

DED 31=st March 2011

Schedule Current Year Pruvious Year
Me. 30201 03010
(Rs) (Rs)
SOURCES OF FUNDS
A. Shareholders' Funds
ll] Share Capls 1 167,680,000 03,84 000
(i) Reserves & Sumius i 1,048,274 87 1,235,354 82 B30 512,953 B84 36250
B. Loan Funds : k] SA0B08.ATY A% 974 351
C. Deferred Tax Liabilty 3 1022240 105,952,242
1,878,787 64 1,576,220 588
APPLICATIONGFFUNDS
A. Fined Assets |
(Goss Blok ] 2,603 352,800 2318979919
Less : Depraciation 1 050434 54 f06,2349 470
e ok 1552018 430 1,4}2.?11_#-‘.[
Capital Werk In Progress 5 275,658 1,553,194 104 52 AT 568 1475612 000
B. Investments £ 40,500 40,504
C. Cumrent Assets, Loans & Advances
[\ Imveniories T 220,366 694 230,766,404
li) Sundry Deblors ] 306,757 18 379,706,490
i) Cash & Bank Balances ] 202,869,293 23 8e8 290
W} Loans & Advanses 10 3871440 207 664 845
1 118747 695 203,005 132
[, Less Current Liabiliies &
Provisions 1 704 154 665 #2142 885
et Curren] Assak 325.553.00 00 5T 07
1,878,787 624 1,378,220, 586
NOTES ON ACCOUNTS 11
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE ATTACHED
FOR GUPTA VIGG & CO. DEEP KAPURIA CHAIRMAN & VWHOLE TIME DIRECTOR
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS VLAY MATHUR SANDEEP DINODIA DIRECTOR
FIRM REGN. Mo. 0013830 GM (FINANCE) VINIT TANEJA DIRECTOR
ANIL KHARMNA DIRECTOR
CA. KAWAL JAIN SHLKHATRI PRANAY KAPURIA MAMAGING DIRECTOR
PARTHER COMPANY SECRETARY ANUJ KAPURIA WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR
M. Mo, 089214
PLACE: New Delhi
DATED: May 25, 2011
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Current Year Previous Year
.z N03.min
R} {Rs]
INCOME
Gres Cperating Incoms 12 £ 552 544 450 3 445 B55 080
Less Excies Duty 313226 318 4240 315,143 215 BB ASE 3226 88 A52
(ther Incame 13 M 3?’3&33 §,812 858
4273538526 3,235 605,510
EXPENDITURE
Manufectuning Expsnsss i 1.743.100,254 1180767 552
(Ciher Evpenzes 15 765798412 570,143 681
Fmanciz| Expanses 18 76,152 313 B6. 707,578
Degracistion 161870642 3746822521 126,072 643 2 955,641 b5
Profit For The Year Before Tax 536716, 005 268 814 005
Betwision For Takation 180,000,000 §2.500,000
Prowsion For Deferred Tax 3128.m) 8,801,231
Provison For Wealh <Tax 25,000 .
Income Tax for eadier yeans . 107,830
Net Prafit After Tax B0 M9ATE 176,504 944
Less: Prior Period Eapansas 11661 e 465
Balance of profit brought foreard 397 853,083 2380725
Balance avaiable for appropiiation w0 TR
APPROPRIATIONS
Intarim Drvidand 3152 00 .
Provigion For Didend 45,820,000 42228 000
Corporate Dividend Tax (Infedm] 4404 470 :
Comorate Dividend Tay T2 830 7,976,540
Transferred %o Corporate Sodial Responshildy Fund 5,000,000 5,000 000
Transfemed Yo General Reserve 40,000,000 20,000,000
Balance Carried ever to Balance Shest 545 641298 ki
74000 503 402 057 132
Eaming Per Share for BasicDiluted 1857 15,00
Adjusted Eaming Per Share for BasicDiuted 1857 850
(Equity Shara par valis Rs, 100 sach)
Mo of equily shares consdared kv companing Eaming Per Share 16,765,000 384,000
NOTES ON ACCOUNTS 1
FOR AMD ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PER OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE ATTACHED
FOR GUPTA WG & CO. DEEP KAPURLA CHAIRMAN & WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS VUAY MATHUR SANDEEP DINODIA DRECTOR
FIRMREGN. No. 0013530 GM (FIMANCE) VIKIT TANEJA DIRECTOR
ANIL KHANNA DIRECTOR
CA. KAVRL JAIN SHKKHATRI PRANAY KAPURLA MANAGING DIRECTOR
PARTNER COMPANY SECRETARY AN KAPURLA WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR
MNo, 089214
PLACE: Nesw Delhi

DATED: May 25, 2011



SCHEDULES TOTHE ACCOUNTS FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEETAND PROFIT 8LOSSACCOUNT

Current Year Previous Year
306201 303200
Rs) Rs)

SCHEDULEY: SHARE CAPITAL
A AUTHORISED :
20,000,000 Equity Shares OF Rs. 10 Each 200,000,000 100,000,000
[Previous Year 10,000,000 Equty Shares)
B)ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAIDUP :
187R000 (Previous Year 9,384 000 JEquly
Sheres OF Rs 10/ Each Fully Pad Up 167,680,000 83 B40,000
(Ot the bove shares 9,364,000 [pravious year M) 187 580,000 LGR4000
Enuity Snares of Rs 1~ Each fuly paid Up 2 allatied as fully
Paid Up Shares by way of bonus shares by capiialising reserve)
SCHEDULE2: RESERVES &8 SURPLUS

As at st Additions SubTotl  Deductions HAs at 31st,

April, 2010 Mar, 2011
CAPITAL RESERVES
Cenial Invesiment Subsidy 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000
Siale Capilal rvesiment Subsicy £,846,000 64,000 L
Revatuation Resarve - Land T 4T T84T 15,657 B46 3 543 801
REVENUE RESERVES
Ganeedl Raserve 2350700 40,000,000 278,907 891 3,240,000 185,067 301
Surplus-Being Balance in Proft & Loss Account JE1 E53.069 2T 988,215 §45541.008 - 545,641,208
Comporate Socl Responsibilly Fund 5,000,000 5 000,000 10,000,000 1,000,000 8,000,000
Hedging Reserve (6.746.728) 5271520 {1444 206) [1,444,208)
TOTAL 800512003 B8.2507% 11=mare 110,487 648 1048 274 882
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Current Year Previous Year
3 pa20i 03
iRs] {Rs)

ECHEDULE 5: LORN FUNDS

1. SECURED LDANS

FROMBANKS & FIMANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

A Term Loans

() ICICI ECA Loan| USD Wil Previaus Year LUSD T50,000) 34 282 500
(i) SCAECE Loan (USD NIl Previeus Year USD 200,000) : 8,142 000
(il SHade Bank of India 31,580,000 78,880,000
(v} Yes Bank Lid 56,280,000 81,280,000
(v} DBS ECB $4.5 M [LUSD 4,500,000 Prewwus Yoar LISD 2 500,00) 203,445 000 14.275,000
i} 3CB ECB $4.4 Mn.(USD 4400 000 Previus Year LISD Nil 198,524.000 -
B) Working Capital Loans

(i) Citi Bank -Pacing Credi({LS0-NiFravious: Yaar-USD 216 525) . b BT 47
() Ceb Bank NA 8627 474 26,539 471
{ii) St Bank Of India ) PR TR
(v} Slandard Charared Bank-Packaging Credit (USD 745,854 | Prewious Year USD Nil) 33720080 .
(v] Sandard Charbersd Bank . pLRIER
€) Other Loans - Medium Terny

From Banks

GICI Bank Limiad 7500481 o068, 854
HOFG Bank Lfd 241,b58 381542
2 UNSECURED LOANS

(Sales Tax Defermend - 18,614,591

540,508 671 185,924, 31

A, Term Loans from ICIC] Bank U | Slandard Chartered Bank , Sate Bank of India , DBS Bank and Yes Bank Lidare secued by way of first pari-pasu chamelmodags i respect of
Company's movable & immovable poperiss, both presend and future | and fhe ttle deeds more parbicularly in sespact of Plot Mo. A-588, Industnal Camplex, Bhiwad), Rajasthan-
019, wene deposited with ICIC! Bank , acling for #sell and as egent of olher lenders and also secured by way of second panipassu chaime on assels refamed in para B * below

B Working Capital boans from Banks are secured by wey of panpassu chare on all preserd and fulure cument assels a.g. shoeks Raw Matenal , Work in Progress , Finished Goods
gle. and book debls of the company and ako secured by way of second pan-passy chame on assels refemed in para "R " abowe.

G Other lozns from banks 2e secured agains! hypothecséion of vehicles

SCHEDULE 3a DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

Balance As Per Last Balance Sheet 105,452 242 47151011
Provicion For The Yaar (3728071 8,801,231
102,24 071 05,352 242
SCHEDULE 4: RHED ASSETS [Am. hRs)
Tl Dok Ueprecinsion T Box
R BE (F ASSETS COSTASON| Lddtions | Delesions | 451 mpact| Totd 2300 Bq:miliw' Provided | Wiithen Back Totd Dep WOY. WO,
0820 | Cunngthe | Dunngthe| Modton | #3201 | wmon | Duwingee | Curingthe B nom B
Yaar Your 02 fex e npam| HnEn o

A VESTUEENT N TEMANCY RIGHT im0 ] 0 fl 8 fi ] 0 ] LR ]
B LAND T4 S8 0| S 15E 0| e i} ] fi 0] 3Msaam AR EEE
({7 BRLCoG 16700 T 106, 558 0T 0 0] 01| BXIEH | 40058 0| R0 ] 28T {380, 175

(W RESIDENTIAL FLATS ETREN| 0 fi il LTI ] . L 0 10RED | ddmi o 5 88
[1 PLANT & MACHMERY [SBTTPTS | WIS R0 | 3SEOT (BT8R | 1 TTISTASA] 245 W0 | 08 16281 HEM | BITHET | AR ES | BISITIAN
E FURMTURE & FOTURE HERT S5 fi 0 ZME52] nmostE | 2u84m 0] fanss:] i 106z 111
F CFFICE EQUFUBTS 120 555 50 a0 Ks &5 0| 1Z41555] SHA635 | BEM 06 B4 | MTENE | 4108040 il 750 485
5 YEHICLES ARG | 0T | ABMIN 0| BST0d)masrats | 23743 | 4080581 | 16012876 | 14580128 /627 546
GRARD TOTAL IMBATAME | MOMIEE | MN M (17862 | 2 MG 35000 | AN .40 IR AT0ARG TEUIST [0 |V R0eE |1 08T0 M)
TR TG
PREVILE YELR LIRAMD US| AMORN | NMEMD |ZNBITMELTI0N M BN 1SN | BEXEAD NeLeM 13eTTE N
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Current Year Previous Year
3.03.201 H.032m0
Rs) {Rs}
SCHEDULE5: CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS
Machirery Under Eneclion 216 658 35,635,136
Bulding under construclion 5315 433
|PreOperalive Expenses allocalion fo Fixed Assest during fhe yeas)
Salary Wapes & Perts 13618.605 121241
Power & Fusl FRYLAL
Financial Expanses £,349.881 3588 287
Profil on emchange rate fuckuation (5,057 548) (280,892
Trawelling Expenses 1.052 a2 283972
Commissian 3280558
Clher Expenses 171941 Tiz,002
23,280,437
Less: Capitalisaion in proporion 1o direct capiial cost
Factory Building 12812m
Plant & Machinery 103768160
205558 52,870,569
SCHEDULE 6; INVESTMENTS
{Long Term - Not Under The Same Managemeni)
Nom Trade (At Cosf)
Quoted
750 Shares of Rs. 10/- Each Fully Paid Up
of Stale Bari Of Bikaner & Jaipur (Previous Year T80 shares of Rs. 10 each, 40 500 40,500
Warked Vialue Rs. 390,900 |, (Previous Year Rs. 3351001
40,500 40500
SCHEDULET: INVENTORIES
(Al Cost Cr Market Price Whichever fs Lower
As Yalued And Certifed By The Managsment)
Finizhed Gooos (Al Cost or Realisable Vaiue Which Ever s Less) 30,132,750 4636 622
Siores, Spares & Loose Tooks (Af Cost) B 414 565 48311028
Siock n Trade 71,148 038 110514 241
Work In Progress (AL Cosf) B4.671,34 56,304 512
220,336,584 230,756 404
SCHEDULES: SUNDRY DEBTORS
[Unsecured Considerad Good Unless Othermise Staled)
A) Debis Qutstanding For A Period Excaeding Six Months 83 m 20,300 544
Less: Provision For Doubtfl Debls 5,166,235 .
6,785,542 20,300 5ad
B) Other Debls 300,091,766 58,405 545
306,797,308 379,706,490
SCHEDULE 9: CASH & BANK BALANCES
(i} Cash In Hand 122 600 170,01
(i) Balances Wit Scheduled Banks
in Curranl Accounts 14432 705 13410120
In EEFC Acsoinls{GBP-54 USD- 159, Previous Year GBP 54 USD 54589) 3802 2G4k
In Unpaid Dividend Accounts 1207 150 543,569
In Margin Mongy Agains( Letier
of Credil & Bank Guaranies 1112645 T.281,086
In Fixed Depes? Accounis 180,000,000 .
202,550,203 13,838,292
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Current Year Previous Year
032014 032040
iRs} {Rs)
SCHEDULEAD: LOANSEADVANCES
Unsecueed Coneidered Good Unless Otherwiss Siated
&) Advances Reaoverabls b Cash o tn Kind or for valus 1o bs recensd 137,440,285 121150
b} Advance fo Suppler §9,629.03
Less: Provizion for sdvancas doublful of recovsry 12,508,571 56 821,352 ST T0
&) Secunly Deposts 020525 21,089,061
d] Advance TanTax Deducled At Soucce 114, 423228 £4, 003,505
9.7 400 287 564 46
SCHEDULEY1: CURREMNT LIABILITIES A PROVISIONS
CURRENT LIABILMES
&) Sundry Crediors
{1} Due To Micra & Small Scale Industrial Underakings 3510478 2861250
(W) Due Toi Cthers 320,852,354 554,465 844
B Cther Liskities
() Income Tax Deducted Af Source 4,097 855 ERLERE!
(1) Interest Accurad Bud Not Due 3,245,581 3002115
(i) Statebory Liabdibes 6568 600 5406 306
(v} Oer Payables 183,537 041 f3,508,511
(V) Advanca From Cuslomars 30,052 547 14,607,244
{uf) Unclaimed Dondend 1207 150 543 B89
FROVISIONS
C) Fair Valustion boss on demvetives 1,444 208 6715728
D) Dividend 45 920000 4228 000
E) Paowisaon B Tax 167, 774 104 f9,678, 0t
F) Weath Tex 25,000
794,194 665 B21 A28 355
SCHEDULE12: OPERATING INCOME
Bales §40 8 3407 540,067
Exports (ncanfives 30 540 804 5,854,411
Job Work Chamss 34,088 624 30535102
Income - Tax Deduied ot wurce R 2000330 (Previous Year Rs, 2820 851 4,562,544 459 3,445 55 00
SCHEDULEYI OTHER INCOME
Piofil On Sales 0f Assets 2,807,281
Profit On Exchange Refe Flucusfion 7768534 :
Miscalaneous Income BE4 180,500
Cash Discour 11,601,503 T453 118
Intersst Inoome 2,047 851 676,240
Income.Tay Deducted &t source 554 0040 (Previous Year Rs. 1078804
Dividend Income 16,200 8,000
W3R 8516550




Current Year Previous Year
3.03.201 303200
Rs) (Rs)
SCHEDULE1&: MANUFACTURINGEXPENSES
Cost of Maaral Consumed 1,765,952.500 1,323,068, 745
Slores & Speres Consumed 220122600 171 15280
Job Work & olher Expensas 590,704 826 495 415,320
Poweer B Fusl 154 071,670 134 658 365
Machinery Regais R IR 29.170,504
211498321 2,160,267 23
Change in Work in Frogress/Finished Goads (31862957 2050032
2,743.400,254 2,180,787,552
SCHEDULE15:0THER EXPENSES
Wages Salaries & Perguisiles 400 f57 240 3881185
Conlribubon To PF. ES1 & Ofher Funds 108911 18616, 766
Labotir And Siaf Weifare FLETLR: ] 16,567,807
Rent 23,606 604 24551 485
Fees Rales & Tames 4730296 B35 644
nsuranse 8,337,750 0080207
Auditor’s Remunaration
- Auit Fee 500,000 500,000
- Ot of Pocked Expenses 104 Bb4 7,94
- i olher Capacily 112,500 717,354 120,000
Direclors Remuneralion 46,458 424 26,042 558
Traweling Expenses 13,502 04g B682 451
Directors Sitfing Fees 175,000 220,000
Atverlisement & Sefing Experses antn 615,55
Regair To Buldng 1622 810 11279 268
Bad Diebls 10,601,008 1:383,305
Provision R doubifl Defs 17,976,806 .
Charity & Donalion 334,186 168,000
Loss on Forsign Exchange Fuchuson 23513559
Loss on S of Assels . 2B 875
Prewvious Years ingome Wrilien Bask 4753633 :
Diher Expenses 133,550,39 85,104,207
165,700,412 510,143,582
SCHEDULE16: FINANCIAL EXPENSES
nierest To Barks 32,964,258 45,456 200
intarest To Olhars 36,589 524 36,492 BTG
Bank Cammision & Charges 4588433 4,758 602
76,152,313 8,707 678

SCHEDULE 17
MNOTES TO ACCOUNTS

1

Significant Accounting Policies.

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

Basis of accounting.

iy  The Financial Statements are prepared under the historical cost convention on accrual basis and are
materially in conformity with the mandatory accounting standardsissued under Companies (Accounting
Standards) Amended Rules 2000 & relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.

i) Accounting Policies not specifically referred to otherwise are consistent and in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation:

Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at costless accumulated depreciation. Depreciation on Buildings and Plant
and Machinery is charged on pro-rata basis on Straight Line Method at the rates prescribed in schedule XIV
of the Companies Act 1856, Depreciation on Fixed Assets costing less then
Rs.5000/-, each in value, are depreciated at the rate of 100% in the year of purchase. Depreciation on rest of
the fixed assets has been provided at the rates prescribed in Schedule X1V of The Companies Act 1956 on
Whitten Down Value basis.

Investments:

Long term investments are carried at cost. However provision for diminution, if any, is made to recognize a
decline, other than temporary, in the value of investment

Inventories:

The bases of determining cost for various categories of inventories are as follows:-

Stores, Spares and Loose Tools and Raw Materials: At cost (First in First out)

Material in Transit; At cost

Work in progress: At material cost plus conversion cost on the basis of absorption costing.

Finished Goods: At material cost plus conversion cost on the basis of absorption costing.
(inclusive of excise duty payable)

Scrap: At realizable  value,
Stock in Trade includes Raw Materials and Scrap.
Impairment of Assets:

At each Balance Sheet date, the Company reviews whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount. If the carrying amount
of the asset exceads its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognized in the Profit & Loss Account
to the extent the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount.

Retirement Benefits;
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall dus,

For defined benefit schemes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using Projected Unit Credit Method,
with actuarial valuation being camied out at each balance sheet date. Actuanal gain & losses are recognized
in full in the Profit & Loss account for the period in which they occur. Past service cost is recognized to the
extent the benefits are already vested, and ofherwise is amortized on a Straightline method over the average
period until the benefits become vested.

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the Balance Sheet represents the presentvalue of the defined
benefit obligations as adjusted for unrecognized past service cost, and as reduced by the fair value of scheme
assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the present value of
available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the scheme.
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a)

h)

i

i)

k)

l

(a) Gratuity Plan

The Company makes annual coniribution to the Employee's Group Gratuity-cum-Life Assurance scheme
of the Life Insurance Corporation of India, a funded defined benefit plan for qualifying employees. The
scheme provides for lump sum payment to vested employees al relirement, death while in employment
or on termination of employment of an amount equivalent to 15 days salary payable for each completed
year of service or part thereof in excess of 6 months. Vesting oceurs upon completion of 5 years of
continued service.

(b) Leave Encashment Plan

The Company is making a provision on actuarial basis for leave encashment benefit of the employees,
the amount of provision & paid during the yearis charged to Profit & Loss Account.

Sales:

The revenue from Sale of Goods s recognized on transfer of all significant risk & rewards of ownership to the
buyer which coincides with dispatches of goods from factory to the customers in case of domestic sales. Sale
value Is Inclusive of excise duty. Price revisions of goods sold are accounted for at the time of billing except
In the case where reasonable cerlainty has been measured up to the date of Balance Sheet.

Expor Sale is accounted for at exchange rale notified on monthly basis by Central Govt. under Custom Law.
Bills outstanding on the Balance Sheet date are reinstated with the exchange rate on that date and the
difference on this account is booked in the Profit & Loss Account.

Foreign Currency Transactions:

(i  Transaction in foreign currencies is converted In rupees at the rates prevailing on the date oftransaction,
Loans and other outstanding balances in foreign currencies at the end of the year are converted at the
rates prevailing on that date.

Pursuant to the notification of the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amended Rules 2009 issued on
31" March 2009, exchange differences relating to long term monetary items, arising during the year, in
so far as they relate to the acquisition of a depreciable capilal asset are added to / deducted from the
cost of the asset w.e.f 1* April 2007 and deprecialed over the balance life of the asset.

(i) Derivative Instruments and Hedge accounting:

The Company uses foreign exchange forward contracts and oplions lo hedge Its exposure to movements
in foreign exchange rates. These foreign exchange forward coniracts and options are not used for
trading or speculation purposes.

For unexpired forward conlracts or options that are designated as effective cash flow hedges the gain
or loss from the effective portion of the hedge is recorded and reporied directly in the shareholders' fund
( under the head “"Hedging Reserve) and will be transferred to Profit and Loss account upon the occurrence
of the events when the contracis get transacted.

The Company recognizes gains or losses from forward contracts and optionsthat are not designated as
effective cash flow hedges for accounting purposes in the profit and loss account in the period in which
they ocour.

Taxation:
Income Tax provision has been made as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,
Deferred Taxes :

Deferred tax Liability/(Assets) for the year is charged to current year's profit. Deferred Tax Liability (Net) is on
account of timing difference in depreciation, leave encashment etc.

Prior period and extra ordinary items and changes in accounting policies having material impact on the
financial affairs of the Company is disclosed appropriately.

Material events occurring afier the Balance Sheet date are taken into cognizance and disclosed appropriately.
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m)

n)

P)

In respect of new unitsim ajor expansion the interest paid/payable on borrowed funds, atinbutable to construction
of building and acquisiion/erection of Plant & Machinery is capitalized up to the date of completion of
construction / acquisiionferection of aforesaid assets.

Interest on borrowed funds:-

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The Company makes a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event where the
oufflow of economic resources is probable & a reliable estimate of the amount of cbligation can be made.
The disclosure is made for possible or present obligation that may require outflow of resources as contingent
liability in the financial statements.

Use of Estimates:

In preparing Company’s financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
India, the Management is required to make estimates & assumplions that affect the reported amount of
Assets & Liabilities and the disclosure of Contingent Liabilities at the date of the Financial Statements and the
reported amount of revenues & expenses dunng the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates, Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized in the perod the same is determined.

Ressarch and Development Costs:

Revenue expenditure incurred on research and development has been charged to the Profit & Loss Account
in the year it is incurred. Capital expenditure is included in respective heads under fixed assets.

Contingent Liabilities

Depending on the facts of each case and after due evaluation of relevant legal aspects, claims against the Company
not acknowledged as debts are disclosed as contingent liabilities. In respect of the statutory matters, contingent
liabilities are disclosed only for those demand(s) that are contested by the Company.

Contingent Liabilities not provided for :

A, Estimated amount of confracts remaining to be exscuted on capital accounts Rs, 106,830,418 after adjusting
advances (Previous year Rs. 117,700,000)

B. Bank Guarantees issued in favour of Asst./ Dy. Commissioners of Customs, Mumbai & Mew Delhi for Export
Obligation is Rs. 5,554,000 (Previous year Rs. 12,132,980)

Opening Released during Year Fresh Guarantees Closing

during the Year

Rs. 12,131,980 Rs 6,578,980 Mil Rs.5,554,000

C. Disputed statutory demands in appeals before Rajasthan High Court:
Rajasthan Tax on Entry of Goods into Local Area Act 1999 | Ra1, 716,840/ & Rs1 351, 717/ for FY 2007-08
& 2008-09 respectively.

3. In the opinion of the Board of Directors, the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are having the value at
which they are stated in the Balance Sheet, if realized in the ordinary course of business.

4. Claims received against shortage / damage of matenals which are not of significant value are not being
shown separately. The same are accounted for on receipt basis.

5. Inpursuance of Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2008, the names of the Enterprises to

whom the Company owes any sum which is outstanding at the year end are as follows:-
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10.

1.

Accordingly, Re. 187,661 have been deducted from the cost of fixed assets and the profit for the yearis lower
by Rs. 187 661.

The Company is pnmarily engaged in the business of gears and transmission components. Inherent
nature of both the activities is governed by the same set of risk and returns, these have been grouped as a
single segment in the above disclosures. Hi-Tech (E-Soft) is a division of the Company engaged in the
business of engineering software solutions. Since this business is not required to be reported as per AS-17
on Segment Reporting, separate figures of the softwara division are not reported.

The Profit & Loss account of the Company includes a profit of Rs.77,63,423 (Net) (Previous year Loss of Rs.
2.35,13,559 (Net) on account of Foreign Exchange Fluctuation, details of the same are stated as below:-

Particulars {Amt. in Rs.)

Profit{ Loss) Recognized on Foreign Currency Loans (Met) 389 501

Profit/{Loss) earned on Imports (Neat) 0.00

Profit/{Loss) recognized on Exports (Net) 1,854,886
Profit{Loss) on Oplions (Net) 5,662 559
Profiti{Loss) on Other expenses (Net) (167 .452)
Total Amount {Net) 7,760,534

12. During the year the company has allotted 9,384,000 Bonus equity shares of Rs. 10/~ each fully paid up in the

13.

14.

15.

ratio of 1:1, out of General Reserve.

A part of Land owned by Company situated at Village Sihi, Gurgaocn was acquired during the year by the
Government of Haryana and amount of Rs. 35,20,396 was received as compensation against 3 Kanal and 8
Marla land. Revaluation Reserve amounting to Rs. 1,56,57,846 pertaining to the acquired part of the land has
been reversed.

Company is following the principles of Accounting Standard ('AS") 30 “Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement” in respect of its derivative financial instruments,

Derivative financial instruments, which qualify for cash flow hedge accountingand where the Company has
met all the conditions of effective Cash Flow hedge accounting, are fair valued at March 31, 2011 .Consequently
Hedging Reserve/Fair Valuation Loss on Derivative balancesis reduced to Rs 1,444, 208.{Previous Year Rs
6,715,728 )

Related Party Discdosures (AS-18)
{a) Enterprise in which company has control-Nil

(b} Key ManagementPersonnel
1 Sh. Deep Kapuria
2 Sh. Pranav Kapuria Managing Director
2 Sh. Anuj Kapuna Whole Time Director

(c) Transactions with the related parties during the year are as per Annexure attached.

Chairman&Whole Time Director

a) {Amt, In Rs)
Current Year Last Year
SNo. Name of the Party Category Intt. On Balance as on Intt. On late Balance as on
Late Pmt. 31.03.2011 PmL 31.03.2010
1 Accurate Engineering Co. Put. Lid. Small 376,210.05 392 562.00
2 Bansal Brothers Micro 10,232.74 1,688.91
3 Bunly Chemical Micro 129m 57,070.51
4 Ehardwaj Engineering Services Micro 7054062 178,255.96
] N K Micro Put. Lid. Micro -2,080,00 65,048.55
B MNarang Industries Micro 959,303.06 745,089.76
7 R M Components pvi. Ltd. Smal 26,109.65 - 382,194.28
|8 Superfine Component (P} Lid. Smal 324,052.19 1267 5,985.00
9 AK. Creations Micro 19199415 111395.8
10 Ehagwat Wood Works Micro 29703052 18628147
1 Chandra Prabhu Industries Pyt Lid. Smal 236340.04 109280 48
12 ESGI Tools Private Ltd. Micro 399397.04 491761.24
13 Patel Engineering Works Micro 55824584 2226834
14 URSS Tech Services Pyt Lid Smal 97092 - 52,365.00
Total 0.00 3,519.475.83 1,267.00 2,861,250.30
b) We have make payment to MSME within permissible time limit under Micro, Small & Medium Enlerprises
Development Act, 2006 during FY 2010-2011 so there is no interest due on MSME.
c) There is no interest due & payable to MSME as on 31.03.2011,
6. Debtorsinclude the following balances outstanding in the name of companies in which directors of the Company
are interested :
(Amt. in Rs.)
Company’s Name Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Closing Balance Closing Balance Maximum Maximum
Amount Amount
outsian I.‘.Iil'lg Cutsta ndlng
Getrag Hi- Tech
Gears India P Lid
(Under the same
Management) 32,384,324 25,281,281 5,91,19,941 47,756,939
7. The Company has leased facillties under operating leases. The future lease payments in respect these
leases as at 31* March 2011 and 31 March 2010 are:
{Amt. in Rs.)
31.03.20M 31.03.2010
a} nollater than one year 18,157,936 18,397,762
b} later than one year bul not later than five years 17,775,000 28,342,081
c) laterthan five years NIL NIL
B. Title of HSIOC plot no. 24, 25, 26, sector 7 IMT Manesar Gurgaon has not been registerad in the name of the
Company. HSIDC had allotied the land in the name of the Company vide its letter of allotment no. HSIIDC
1441 dated 10.07.2003.
8. Company opted for the option to follow principles of notification of the Companies (Accounting Standards)

Amendment Rules 2006 on 31" March 2009, Thereby exchange differences relating to long-term monetary
items, arising during the year, in so far as they relate to the acquisition of a depreciable capital asset are
added tof deducted from the cost of the asset under the head “Addition” of Schedule 4 and depreciated over
the balance life of the assel.
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16, Eaming Per Share (EPS)

Particulars Current year 10-11 Previous year 09-10
Face value of Share Rs. 10/ Rs. 10~
A) Mo. of Equity Share

a) Basic 18,768,000 93,84 000

b) Adjusted 18,768,000 18,768,000
B} Met profit for the year after prior periodexpenses Rs. 350,347 515 Rs. 178,250,479
EPS BASIC (Bfa) Rs.18.67 Rs.18.00
Adjusted EPS(B/b) Rs.18.67 Rs. 9.50




17. Funded status of Gratuity Plan & Leave Encashment

The following tables set out the funded and unfunded status of the gratuity plan and leave encashment amounts
recognized in the Company's financial statements as at 31March, 2011:

Actuarial valuation of leave encashment and gratuity has been done with the following assumptions:

Current Year Previous Year Currenl Year Previous Year
Particulars Leave Encashment Leave Encashment Gratuity Gratuity
Discount Rate 8.34% 7.00% 8.34% 7.00%
Rate of increase In
Compensation Levels 8.00% 3.00% 8.00% 3.00%
Expected Rate of Return
Of Plan Assels - 9.25% 8.15%
Expected Average
Remaining Working Lives
Of Employees (Years) 20.76 20.96 -
{Amt. in Rs.)

Change in the present Leave Encashment Leave Encashment Gratulty Gratuity
value of obllgartion:
Present value of
obligation as at 01.04.10 10,873,126 7,381,431 34,139,640 24,511,493
Interest Cost 906,819 516,700 2,847 246 1,715,808
Past Service Cost - - 2,690,504 -
Current Service Cost 3,777,877 2,351,965 5479364 3,226,672
Benefits Paid 6,537,174 -2,468,842 -2,546,278 -2,455826
Actuarial (gain)/loss
on obligations 10,448,440 3,091,872 16,802,316 7,141,496
Present value of
obligation as at 31.03.11 19,469,088 10,873,126 594 12,792 34,139,640
Change in the fair value of Plan Assets: Gratuity Gratuity

Funded Funded
Fair value of Plan Assets at 01.04.10 27,976,163 5,465,340
Actual Return on Plan Assels 2,827,775 428,682
Contributions 6,178,544 24 348 216
Benefits Paid -2,5486,278 -2,267 075
Fairvalue of Plan Assets at 31.03.11 34,436,204 27,976,163

(Amt. In Rs.)

Reconciliation of present value of defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of assets Gratuity Gratuity
Present value of funded obligation as at 31.03.11 59,412,792 34 139640
Fair value of Plan Assets as al the end of the period funded stalus 34 436,204 27 976,163
Present value of unfunded obligation as at 31.03.11 24 976,588 6,163,477
Unfunded MNet Liability recognized in Balance Sheet 24 976,588 6,163,477
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Expenses recognized in the Profit and Loss Account Gratuity Gratuity
Current Service Cost 5,479,364 3,226,672
Past Service Cost 2680 504 -
Interest Cost 2847 246 1,715,805
Expectad Return on Plan Assets (2,587,795) (500,079
Met Actuarial {Gain)/Loss recognized in the period 16,562,236 7,212,893
Total Expenses recognized in the Profit and Loss Account 24,991 G55 11,655,291
18. The components of Deferred Tax Liability/Assat are as under:
{&mt. in Rs,)
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Deferred Tax Liability due to iming difference of Depreciation 036,791 (3,494 250)
Deferred Tax Assets/{Liability) due to provision for Gratuity 0 {6,473, 787)
Deferred Tax Assets due to provision for Leave Encashment 2,791,380 1,166,815
Total 3,728,171 (8,801,231)
Related Party Disclosure (AS18) (Amt. in Rs.)
as on 31.03.2011
Aguarian Vulean Gefrag Hi- Hi-Tech
Particulars Fibracement Elaciro Tech Gears Robotic Mr, Deep Mr. Pranay Mr. Anyj
Pl Lid. Controls Lid India Pvt Systamz Kapuria Kapuria Kapuria
Lid Lid.
Tolal Tolal Total
Key Key Key
Azsociale Aszzociale Aszociate Associals Managament | Managemenl | Managemeni
Nature of Relafionship Company Company Company Company Persannel Peraanrel Persarnal

Rent 10,800,000 . -

Sale of Goods - . 274014028

JWiSenvices provided - 13,056,218 1342326

Job WorkfService Recvd. . 230,873,018 - 15,147 386
Purchase Material . 224 426 -

Director’s Remuneration

21,738.13

13,043,918 8,661,234

Sitting fees 10,000
Totzl Payable 4,105,400 34 647121 20,582 16,606,349 11,806,785 7071218
Tolal Recoverable 31,360,364
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10 ADDNTIONAL INFORMATION PURSUANT TO PARA 3 & 4 OF PART |1 OF SCHEDULE VI OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956

1.7 EXPENDITURE N FOREIGK CURRENCY

Foreign Travel Expenses T WA LHLHEN
Traiming & Semina 1H8RR36 LR
Substription pupa iR ] naLN
Technical services THMEnN E
EC B Iterest TS0 M0 L HETS
F C B Loan Repayment LTI 20071 p04.08
Professional Senrices 180,104 LRem
10
{Exports at F.0B Yahue) 08,232 301 40918 Bi6
199 IMPORTED AND INDIGENOUS RAW MATERIALCOMPONENTS, STORES & SPARES CONSUMED
IMPORTED INDIGENOUS
CURRENT YEAR PREVIDUS YEAR CURRENT YEAR PREVIDUS YEAR
Ha2am Haam Haran HA32H0
STORES & SPARES (ALUES I fis) 5292100 1517300 MATLIELN 114,535 500,11
PERCENTAGE 10 (1154 L1 S 4004
P MATERIAL [VALUE W Rsj 1] e 1,765,052, 500.23 130 404 AR
PERCENTAGE s LU 1B AT
(Al in Hs)
Curssel Year Pranis Year
1010 PAYMENT T0 DRECTORS
Remuneration 10,20,78.1 7,960,000.00
Commission W 12588000 1.1835.8
Perquistes LE b2 1 GRF
Comribution to Provident Fund T 3100 S0 0000
Directors’ sitting fees 150,00 78 M08
1011 CALCULATION OF MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2000-2011
Compiatation of Net Profit in accordance vith Section 303 (5] of the Conpanies Act, 135 {AmL in Rz}
LCarmnl Year Prewous Yoar
Profit before Tax as per P & L Account 246716005 268 004,005
Less: Prior period expenses 11561 254,985
Less: Proft on sale of Fived Asset 2,801 252 .
Added Back =
HSHDC Subsidy . 5,346 bbd
Total s73801 002 275,005,540
Computation of Cormmission to Director
a) Commission on Profd to Chaimun 1571513 0.110,365
b} Commigsion on Profit 1o Managing Director 1043018 4105
¢] Commission on Profit to whole fime Director 6,473,402
¢) Conmission on Profit to other Director 2593,168 1518201
Total Commizsion payable to Directors HIHm 19736047

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
.20 032010
QUANTITY VALLE QUANTITY VALLE
Rupees Rupess
161 TURNOVER
Transmission Compenents 40605280 Pes 4 121,320,781 JTET4000 Pes 31323845
Serap 5537500 KG 9,000,072 434070 KG 62474240
Others 4014762 2443275
Job Work Sales 34,888 829 30,835,102
192 RAWMATERIAL CONSUMED
High Carbon High Cromium Steel 30483462 KG 1,765,952 500 23008570 KG 1,323868,745
193 VALUE OF STORES , SPAREPARTS & 29122697 117,152 877
COMPONENETS CONSUMED
(It is not practicable to fumish quantitative information of other material
and components consumed in view of considerable no. of items, being
diverse In size and volume)
18.4 PARTICULARS OF OPENING STOCH, SALES AND CLOSING STOCK OF FINISHED GOODS
| opemme stock | SALES CLOSING STOCK
CURRENT YEAR  PREWIOUS YEAR CURRENT YEAR FREVIOUS YEAR CURRENT YEAR FREVIOUS YEAR
Oty Nos Yalue Rs. Oty Mos Value Rs. Oty MNos ValueRs. Oty Mos ValueRs. Oty Nos  ValweRs, Ofy Nes  Vakie Rs.
Geaar bor tra n components 18930 4BI6EEZ] 400 ZEE199  4DGDSEED 4121320781 VRSO JMAIIGAE M4MI  NIRTS0 930 A B36R2I00
Sleering Woms & Gas assembly
195 INSTALLED CAPACITY & ACTUAL PRODUCTION
INSTALLED CAPACITY ACTUAL PRODUCTION
ASON ASON ASON ASON
303201 30320 03201 H032m0
GEAR BOX AND TRANSHISSION COMPONENETS
STEERING WORM & GAS ASSEMBLY 50000000 Pes, 45000000 Pes. 4958505 Pes JTET4000 Pes
Notes :
Installed capacity s certified by the Management but not verified by the auditors being a technical
matter.The manufacturing process as per Note F.No.A0(43)81 L. Pdated 230719 does not require
registration Raw material & stores consumed include sales of raw material and companents.,
RS RS
.03 S0
198
Comsumable Stores 5,252 134 1647 374
Rawr Katerial .00 T e
Capital goods £2.356 008 BR800
Softwares .00 1010887
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The figures have been romnded off 1o the nearest rupes,
Premious year figures have been regrouped and reamanged whererer found necessany.
2 Schedule 1017 form an integral part of Balnce Sheet and Frofit and Loss Account

=
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FOR GUFTA VIGG & €O,

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS VIJAY MATHUR
FIRMREGN. No. DD1393N GH {FMANCE]

CA, KAVEL JAIN S.K KHATRI

PARTNER COMPANY SECRETARY
M.No, BB3214

PLACE: New Delhi

DATED: May 25, 011

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DEEP KAPURIA
SANDEEP DINODIA
VINIT TANEJA
ANIL KHANKA
PRANAY HAPURIA
ANU KAPUR A

CHAIRMAN & WHOLE TME DIRECTOR
DRECTOR

DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR

MANAGNG DIRECTOR

WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR



CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH 2011 BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPANY'S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE.
Current Year Previous Year f
I Registration Detaik
i IR0
Net Proft Bafers Tax & Extracrdinary dems £16,715,05 265,214 10 Bakance Sheet Date # 3 il
Adjustmiat for- Date Bonth Year
Decrecigtion 161870 pd2 126,072 643
mﬂm Il'm (18.200) (2,001 Il CAPTAL RAISED DURING THE YEAR (AMOUNT IN RS. THOUSANDS)
Imisrest Expenses o133 B8, 707,679 Public lssue L[] Right lssue Nil
E::;ﬂuiﬁw (irredfised Profty Unveaked Loss ;fﬂ?g 9] 1¢' 92?9;.3:1?} Boaus lssue w840 Private Placement L
Pt sk oheds (2801250 g i . b "
ﬂf;,ﬁ,"} Pr:ﬁtﬂmwms Capital Changes 762453 976 ABSTST 968 Il POSITION OF MOBILISATION AND DEPLOYMENT OF FUNDS (AMDUNTS IN THOUSANDS)
frcrsase) Detrasse n Dattos 70,015,606 (112188,084) Total Liabilities 878,787 Total Assets 1878781
(irerazss)l Decrasse i bweniories 103978 4705808 Saurces of Funds
(Inerezsall Decresse in Ofher Curend Assets, Losns & Advances {23 436,033) 1480717 Paid up Capital 187 50 Reseves & Surplus 1048275
:;c-'usa |Da:ra.*.Fse;: n ml Listitjas & Prowisions ﬁgﬁ?g iﬁﬁﬂ; Secored Loans 540 f0g Unsecured Loans .
sh Generaled From ims . i
Direct Taxes Paid (160.515.483) (T5.21.480) 2?&@#12 h;ﬁﬁ;
Cash Flow Before Exracréinary flems 59275 28 2403475 i ’
Extracranary ltems (Praimeary Expenses Writien Of) ; : Net Fied Assels 1,553,194 Investments ]
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SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATION

Registered Office & Works
A-589, Industrial Complex,
Bhiwadi - 301019,

District Alwar, (Rajasthan)

Tel Mo: (01493) - 641237-39

Fax MNo: (01493) - 220512

Web site: www hitechgears.com

Corporate Office

14th Floor, Tower-B, Unitech’s Millennium Plaza,
Shushant Lok-1, Sector - 27, Gurgaon,
Haryana-122002

Tel No: (0124) - 4715100

Fax MNo: (0124) - 2806085

Email: secretarial@hitechgears.com

Listing
The shares of the company are listed on the following Stock Exchanges:-
Stock Exchange Stock Code
(a) National Stock Exchange of India Limited HITECHGEAR
Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (E), Mumbai-400051.
ib) Bombay Stock Exchange Limited 522073

Phiroze leejeebhay Towers
Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400001.

Annual General Meeting
Date & Time - Tuesday the 27 day of September, 2011 at 11.00 A.M,
Venue ! A-589, Industrial Complex,

Bhiwadi - 301019

District Alwar, Rajasthan

Book Closure Dates
September 16 to September 27, 2011 (both days inclusive)

Dividend
The Board of Directars have recommended dividend of Rs. 2.50 per equity share (@ 25%) subject to the approval of
the members in Annual General Meeting on 27 day of September, 2011.

If dividend on shares as recommended by the Board of Directors is approved at the Annual General Meeting,
payment of such dividend will be made to those members whose names appear in the Register of Members on
September 27, 2011. In respect of the shares held in electronic form, the dividend will be payable to the beneficial
owners of the shares as on the closing hours of business on September 15, 201 , as per the detalls to be furnished
by the depositories for this purpose

Depository System

In view of the numerous advantages offered by the depository system, the members are requested to avail the
facilities of dematerialization of the company's shares on either of the depositories viz., National Securities Depaosi-
tory Limited {NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (COSL).

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

MAS Services Limited

{Unit: Hi-Tech Gears Limited)

T-34, 2nd Floaor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase -l
New Delhi - 110020,

Ph.: 011 -26387281,82,83

Fax:011 - 26387384

Web site: www.masserv.com

Email: info@masserv.cam
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NOTICE

NOTICE is hersby given to the members of Hi-Tech
Gears Limited, that the 25th Annual General Meeting of
the Company will be held on Tuesday the 27th day of
September, 2011, at 11.00A.M,, at the Registered Office
of the Company, al A-589, Industrial Complex, Bhiwadi
— 3010189 (Rajasthan), to transact the following
businessas:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Toreceive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance
Sheet of the Company asat March 31, 2011 and the
Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on thal
date together with the Auditers’ and Directors’ Report
ther=on.

To declare dividend on equity shares.

To appoint & Director In place of Mr. Anil Kumar
Khanna who retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers himself for re-appaintment.

4 Toappeinta Director in place of Mr, Pranav Kapuria
who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment.

5 To appoint Auditors and to fix their remuneration.
SPECIAL BUSINESSES

6 Re-appointment of Mr. Deep Kapuria, as
Chairman & Whole Time Director of the Company, to
be designated as Executive Chairman and to fix his
remuneration.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without
maodification(s) the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to section 198, 269, 309,
310 and 311 read with Schedule Xl and all other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956,
approval be and is hereby accorded to the appointment
of Mr. Deep Kapuria as Chairman & Whole Time Director,
to be designated as Executive Chairman of the Company,
for a term of five years w.e.f. 01* January 2012 to 31*
December, 2016 with payment of remuneration at the
lerms and conditions set oul below:-

1. Salary: Rs. 3,80,000/- per month for the 1* 15
months .e. from 01* January, 2012 to 31" March,
2013 and thereafter with increase @12.5% p.a. for
the remaining term of his appointment.

2. Commission: Upto 3.0% of the net profit of the
company computed in the manner specified in
section 198 of the Companies Acl, 1956.
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I.  Housing: The expenditure on hiring the furnished
accommedation will be subject to a ceiling of
B0% of the salary, over and above 11% payable
by the appointee. In case, no residential
accommodation is provided to the appointee by
the company, he shall be paid house rant
allowance @ 60% of the basic salary per month.

3. Perquisites : as under :-

il. Gas, Electricity, Water, Security, furnishing etc.:
The expenditure on Gas, Eleciricity, water,
Securily and furnishing shall be valued as per
Income Tax Rules, 1962, subject, however, to
the celling of 10% of the salary.

iii. Medical Reimbursement: Expenses incurred for
the appointee and his family subject to a ceiling
of one month's salary in a year or three month's
salary over a period of three years,

iv. Leave Travel Concesslon: - For the appointes
and his family, once in a year incurred in
accordance with the Rules specified by the
company, subject to a ceiling of one month’s
salary.

v. Club Fees: Fees of clubs subject to a maximum
oftwo clubs. This will not include admission and
life membership fee.

vi. Personal Accident Insurance: Premium not
exceeding Rs. 10000/- per annum.

vil. Provident Fund: Company’s contribution fowards
provident fund not exceeding 12% of the basic
salary per month.

vill. Gratuity: Mot exceeding half month's salary for
every completed year of service.

ix. Earned/Privilege Leave: One month leave with
full salary and perquisites for every eleven
month.

%. Use of Car: Free use of company's Car with
driver for the business of the company.

xi. Telephone: Free use of telephone for him and
al his residence. However, long distance
personal calls shall be billed to him by the
company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the aggregale
remuneration of the Chairman & Whole Time Director
shall not exceed 5% of the Net Profit in any Financial
year, and total remuneration payable lo all the working
Directors put together shall not exceed 10% of the Net
Profit in any Financial year.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the evenl of loss or
inadequacy of Profit in any Financial year, the appointee



shall be paid remuneration at the rates specified above,
subject to approval, If any, required from the Central
Government under Schedule Xlll of the Companies Acl,
1956".

7 Appointment of Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain as the
Director of the Company.

To Consider and if thought fit to pass with or without
modification(s) the following resolution as an
ordinary resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain, who was
appointed as an Additional Director of the Company in
the meeting of the Board of Directors held on August 10,
2011 and who holds office up to the date of this Annual
General Meeting in terms of Seclion 260 of the
Companies Act, 1956 and the provisions of the Arlicles
of Association of the Company and in respect of whom
the Company has received a notice in writing pursuant
to Section 257 of the Companies Act, 1956 proposing
his candidature lo the office of the director, be and is
hereby appointed as a Director of the Company, liable fo
retire by rotation.”

8. Increase of the sitting fee for attending Board &
Committee meeting to Non-Executive Director.

To Consider and if thought fit to pass with or without
modification(s) the following resolution as an
ordinary resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT Pursuant to the provisions of the
section 310 & other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956, the sitling fees of each Non-
Executive Director of the Company for attending a
meeting of the Beard or a Commitiee thereof be
Increased to Rs. 10,000/~ per meeting.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of
the Company be and is hereby aulhorised lo Increase
the sitting fees from time to time within the overall limit
as prescribed in the provisions of the Companies Act,
1956 & Rule 10B of General Rules & Forms."

By order of the Board of

Hi-Tech Gears Ltd.
Sdi-
Place :MNew Delhi S.K. Khatri
Date :10August, 2011 Company Secretary

NOTES:

1 AMEMBERENTITLED TOATTEND AND VOTEAT
THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY
TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/
HERSELFAND THE PROXY NEED NOT BEAMEMBER
OF THE COMPANY. PROXIES IN ORDER TO BE
EFFECTIVE MUST BE RECEIVED AT THE
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REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS
THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE MEETING.

2  Pursuant to Section 154 of the Companies Act,
1956, the Register of Members and the Share Transfer
Books will remain closed from September 16, 2011 to
Septernber 27, 2011 (both days inclusive).

3 If final dividend on shares is approved at the Annual
General Meeting, payment of such dividend will be made
to those members whose names appear In the Register
of Members on September 27, 2011, In respect of the
shares held in electronic form, the dividend will be
payable to the beneficial owners of the shares as on the
closing hours of business on Seplember 15, 2011, as
per the details to be furnished by the depositories for
this purpose.

4 Members desiring any information as regards the
Accounts are requested to write to the Company at an
early date, so as to enable the management to keep the
information ready.

5 As per the regulations of National Securities
Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository
Services Limited (CDSL) the Company Is obliged to print
ihe bank detalls on the dividend warranis as furnished
by NSDL & CDSL ({the Depositories) to the Company
and the Company cannol enterlain any request for
deletion/change of bank details already printed on the
dividend warrants as per information received from the
concerned depositories, In this regard members are
advised to conlact their depository pariicipant (DP) and
furnish the particulars of any change desired by them
and in case they wish to avall ECS facility, then
accordingly furnish the details in necessary format to their
DP only.

6 Pursuant to the provision of Section 205A of the
Companies Act, 1956, the amoun! of dividend which
remains unpaid or unclaimed for a period of 7(Seven)
years from the date of transfer of the amount to unpaid
dividend account would be transferred to the “Investor
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)" constituted by
the Central Government and the shareholders would not
be able to make any claims as to the amount of dividend
so transferred to the fund from the Company. Thus, the
shareholders who have not yel encashed their dividend
warranis are requested in their own interest to write to
the Company or its RTA (Mass Services Limited)
immediately for claiming outstanding dividends declared
by the Company for the year 2003-04 and onwards,

7 The proposed date for the transfer of unclaimed final
dividend by the Company for the year 2003-04 to |EPF
is 20th September, 2011.

8 Information pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing
Agresment Is annexed as Annexure-| hereto with regard

io the appointment/re-appointment of the Directors.

9 An Explanatory Statement as required under section
173(2) of the Companies Act, 1958, is annexed herelo
with regard to the special business.

10 Corporate Members are requested to send a duly
certified copy of the Board Resolution, pursuant to
Section 187 of the Companies Act, 1856, authorizing their
representative to attend and vole at the Annual General
Meeting.

11 Members who hold shares in the certificate form and
wish to make/change in nomination in respect of their
shareholding in the Company, as permitied under Section
109A of the Companies Act, 1956, may do so by
submitting lo the Company the prescribed Form 2B.

12 The members are requested lo:

a. Quate their Folio number while corresponding
with the Company.

b. Motify any change in their registered address
immediately.

13. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs hastaken a 'Green
Initiative in Corporate Governance’ by Issuing circulars
allowing paperless compliances by Companies through
electronic mode, in pursuant to Section 53 of the
Companies Act, 1956. The shareholders can now receive
nolices and documents through electronic mode by
registering their emall addresses with the company.
Shareholders whe have not registered their emall
address with the Company can now register the same
by submitting their request in this regard to the with M/s,
MAS Services Limited or at the Secretarial Department
of the Company. The Members holding shares In
electronic form are requested to register/update their e-
mail addresses with their Depository Participants only.
Even after registering for e-communicalion the
Shareholders of the Company are entitled to receive such
communication in physical form, upon request.

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 173(2)
of the Companies Act, 1956,

Item No.6

Re-Appointment of Mr. Deep Kapuria, as Chairman
& Whole Time Director of the company designated
as Executive Chairman.

Mr. Deep Kapuria was appointed as Chairman &
Managing Director of the company for a period of & {five)
years w.e.f. 1" January 2007 to 31* December 2011, for
which approval was accorded by the members In their
21" Annual General Meeting held on 17" Seplember,
2007. Keeping in View the confribution made by him since
the inception of the Company, your Board of Directors
proposed his appointment as Chairman & Whole Time
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Director, to be designated as Executive Chairman, for a
further period of 5 (five) years w.e.f, 1" January 201210
31" Dec. 2016, in their meeting held on 10" August 2011,
subject to the approval of shareholders in their ensuing
Annual General Maating

A brief resume of Sh. Deep Kapuria, is annexed herewith
in Annexure |, mentioning therein qualification the nature
of his expertise in specific functional areas and the names
of the companies in which he holds the position as
Director.

Mr. Desp Kapuria, Mr. Pranav Kapuria and Mr. Anuj
Kapuria, Direclors being related to each olther may be
deemed to be interested in the resolution, Mo other
directors are interested or concerned in the resolution,

This may also be irealed as an abslract of terms of
appointment of whole time Director pursuant to section
302 of Companies Act, 1956

The Board of Directors of your Company recommends
passing of the aforesaid resolution as special resolution
al item no. B.

ltem No. 7

Appointment of Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain as the
Director of the Company.

Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain was appoinied as an
Additional Director of the Company by the Board of
Directors in their meeting held on August 10, 2011. He
holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting
in terms of Section 260 of the Companies Act, 1956,
The Company has recelved a notice from a member of
the Company along with requisite fees under Section
257 of the Companlies Act, 1956 signifying his intention
to propose his appointment to the office of Director.

Abrief resume of Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain, Is annexed
herewith in Annexure |, mentioning therein qualification
the nature of his expertise in specific functional areas
and the names of the companies in which he holds the
position as Director

Yours Directors commend the appointment in the best
interest and promotion of the Company. Except Mr.
Ramesh Chandra Jain, no other Director is in any way
concerned or interested in this Resolution.

ltem No. 8

Increase of the sitting fee for attending Board &
Committee meeting to Non-Executive Directors.

In view ofthe current inflationary position it is recommend
thal the sitting fees be increased for attending Board &
Committee meeting to Non-Executive Directors of the
Company, The lasl increase was done in the year 2005,
thus it has been considered prudent and fair to increase



the sitting fees of a Non-Executive Director to
Rs. 10,000/- for attending each meeting of Board of
Directors and Committee meseting.

Further, the Board of Direclors will be authorised lo
increase the fee under the overall limit prescribed in
section 310 and other applicable provisions of
Companies Act, 1956 including Rule 108 ofthe General
Rules & Form.

All the Non-Executive Directors may be considered
interested or concermned in the resolution to the extent
the sitting fees they will receive. Your Company
recommends passing of aforesaid resolution at item no.
8.

Annexure-l

Brief particulars of Directors seeking Appointment/Re-
appointment pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement;

1. Mr. Deep Kapuria son of Late Sh. Darshan Kumar
Kapuria born on August 5, 1949 is founder Director of
the Company and designated as the Executive Chairman
of the Company. He Is a technocrat and expert in Gear
Manufacturing & Designing, Business Management &
Finance. He possess the following qualifications:

1. Bachelor of. Engineering (Honors') from B.L.T.S.,
Pilani;

2. Advance Management Programme from Indian
Institute of Management, Ahmedabad

3. Lead Assessor Course for IS0 9000 from P.E.
Batalas Ltd., UK

4. Owner Management Programme from Harvard
Business Schoaol, USA

He is presantly holding the membership of the board/
commitiee(s) of the other companies: - Dev Darshan
Construction Pvt. Lid.; Hi-Tech Robotic Systemz Limited.;
Hi-Tech & Assoclates Lid.

Mr. Deep Kapuria holds 3083045 equity shares in the
company as on the date of notice.

2. Mr. Anil Kumar Khanna Son of Shri Padam
Vibhusan. Mr. A.K. Khanna, born on July 17, 1853 and
Joined the Company as a Director in the year 1987 . He s
a Member of the Institule of Charlered Accountants of
India and is also Fellow Member of the Institute of
Chartered Accounianis (England & Wales). He is
possessing expertise In Accountancy, Finance &
Taxation.

He is presently holding the membership of the Board/
committee(s) in the following other Companies:- Aquarius
Travels Pvl. Ltd.; Asahl Components Pvi. Lid.; DFK
Consulling Sarvices (1) Pvt. Ltd.; RLF Securities Pwv. Ltd.;
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Telecom Finance (1) Ltd.; ULL Securities Pvt. Ltd.; United
Leasing & Industries Lid.; International Trading
Federation Limited; Virgo Components Pvi. Lid.; RLF
Limited, R.K. Khanna & Co., Saurer Embroidery Systems
(India) Pvt. Lid.

Mr. Anil Kumar Khanna does not hold any shares (in his
own name or on behalf of other person on bensficial
basis) in the Company.

3. Mr. Pranav Kapuria, San of Mr. Deep Kapuria born
on July 186, 1975 joined the company as a Whole Time
Director-cperations in the year 2000. Taking into
consideration the contribution made by him for the growth
of business, he was promoled as Deputy Managing
Director of the Company on 1* August 2005 & thereafter
as Managing Director W.e.f 01.08.2010

He has done Bachelor of Commerce with Honors from
Delhi University, also holds Masters Degree in Business
Administration from Cardiff Business School, University
of Cardiff, U.K. and Certificate program on Lean
Manufacturing from University of Michigan, College of
Engineering, USA. In addition, he has undergone
industrial training in repuled Engineering Corporation in
USA. Mr. Pranav Kapuria is an expert in transforming
traditional organization Into a vibrant one through
implementation of lean manufacturing program, which
includes implementation of total quality Management,
Total Productivity Management, Just-In-Time and Kalzen.

He is presently holding the membership of the board/
committee(s) of the other companies:- Hi-Tech Portfolio
Investments Ltd, Hi-Tech & Assoclates Lid, Hi-Tech
Robotic Systemz Litd.

Mr. Pranav Kapuria holds 8193786 equity shares in the
Company as on the date of notice.

4, Mr. Ramesh ChandraJain Son of Mr. Kundam Lal
Jain born on December 22, 1946 joined the Company
as an Additional Director recently on 10" August, 2011.He
has done B.Tech (Honors) in Mechanical Engineering
(1268) from |IT, Kharagpur, India and Masters in Industrial
Management (1973) from Cranfield University, UK. He
was rated the best student of the session 1872-73 and
was awarded ‘Society of British Aerospace Company
Award' al Cranfield.

He is presently holding the membership of the board/
committee(s) of the other companies:

Hi-Tech Robotic Systemz Lid., Grazians Transmission
India Pvt. Lid., Modern Steels Limited. He possesses a
combination of the strategic thinking and perspective,
along with sound operations experience,

Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain does not held any shares {in
his own name or on behalf of other person on beneficial
basis) in the Company.

HI-TECH GEARS LTD.
Regd. Oce:  A-589, Industrial Complex, Bhiwadi-301019, Distt. Alwar (Rajasthan)
ATTENDANCE SLIP
25" Annual General Meeting, September 27, 2011

Hi-Tech Gears Limited

A-589, Industrial Complex, Bhiwadi - 301019, Distt. Alwar (Rajasthan)

Please complete this Attendance Slip and hand it over at the entrance of the Meeting Hall, Joint sharehalders may
obtain additional Attendance Slip on request.

Mame & Address of
The Shareholder(s)

Folio No/Client ID=......ooeenmrsrrnnes .
No. of shares held: DPRID

| hereby recaord my presence at the 25" Annual General Meeting of the Company on 27th day of September 2011, at
the Registered Office of the Company at, A-589 Industrial Complex, Bhiwadi - 301019, Rajasthan,

Signature of the Shareholder(s)/Proxy

HI-TECH GEARS LTD.
Regd.Oce: A-589, Industrial Complex, Bhiwadi-301019, Distt. Alwar (Rajasthan)
PROXY FORM
25' Annual General Meeting, September 27, 2011

Hi-Tech Gears Limited
A-589, Industrial Complex, Bhiwadi - 301019, Distt. Alwar (Rajasthan)

Folio Ne/ClientID......cccovvmvireivnnnns 0 | B e A
OF ieiarivasmssnsannssnrosssrassssssssasens ol BB AISIHCLOF, .. iviivianiasissonnimssnnasnsn s o DEING @ member/members*
of Hi-Tech Gears Limited, hereby appoint. s cosmsmmosmanmessssssnsssnmmssnnonssssssssssmsssssssnsssssssssssssssnsssssssammmss
Tty R——— L RS TR L o R ) (L L T
S L T, o — b M R T TN TS LSRN TR T S -
o T e P A T T T T h e inthe districrof. - e erav Tt as my/oursk

Proxy to attend and vote for me/us* on my/ours behalf at the 25th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be
held on Tuesday the 27™ day of September, 2011 and/or at any adjournment thereof, at the Registered Office of the
Company.

Ax

fe
e T Y vsnasessssrsmapmsmanssome s 2011. St

1/-

1 [T 00 Ny g = K g 0 e~

NOTE: The proxy, In order to be effective, should be duly stamped, completed and signed, and must be deposited at the
registered oce of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the aforesaid meeting, The proxy need not
be a member of the Company.

s Strike whichever is not applicable,
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Corporate Office

14th Floor, Tower-B,

Unitech's Millennium Plaza,
Sushant Lok-l, Sector-27,

Gurgaon,

Haryana-122002

Tel: (0124) 4715100

Fax: (0124) 2806085

Email: secretarial@hitechgears.com

Registered Office
& Works

A-588, Industrial Complex,
Bhiwadi- 301019

Dist. Alwar, (Rajasthan)
Tel: (01483) 641237-38
Fax: (01493) 220512

Plant II;

Plot No. 24, 25 & 26,
Sector -7,

IMT Manesar, Gurgaon,
Haryana- 122050

Tel: (0124) 4715200
Fax: (0124) 43688025

Plant IIl:

SPL - 146

Industrial Complex,
Bhiwani- 301019

Dist. Alwar, (Rajasthan)

Bankers

DBS Bank Lid,

ICIC| Bank Ltd,

Citi Bank N.A.

Standard Chartared Bank
State Bank of India

State Bank of Bikaner & Jaipur
Bank of Baroda

Yes Bank Limited

Registrar & Transfer
Agent

MAS Services Limited

(Unit: Hi-Tech Gears Limited)

T-34, 2 floor Okhla Industrial Area,
Phase-|l, New Delhi-110020

Tel: (D11) 26387281, B2, B3

Fax: (011) 26387384

Board of Directors

Sh. Deep Kapuria
Chairman

Mr, Anll Khanna
Indepandent Director

Mr. Sandesep Dinodia
Independeant Diractor

Mr. PC. Mathew
Independent Director

Mr. Vinit Taneja
Independent Director

Mr. Pranav Kapuria
Managing Director

Mr. Anu| Kapuria
Executive Director

Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain
Additional Directar

Senior Executives

Mr. Vijay Mathur
Genaral Manager (Finance)

Principal Officer

Mr. S.K.Khatri
Company Secretary

Statutory Auditors

M/s Gupta Vigg & Co.
Chartered Accountants

E - 61, Lower Ground Floor
Kalkaji,

MNew Delhl - 110018,

Internal Auditors

Ernst & Young Pwvt. Lid.

Golf View Corporate Tower - B
Sector - 42, Sector Road,

Gurgaon - 122002, Haryana (India)
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